
1 
 

NOTICE OF 13TH ANNUAL GENERAL MEETING 
 

Notice is hereby given that the 13th Annual General Meeting of Members of “Sotefin Bharat Private 
Limited ( formally known as “Sotefin Parking Private Limited)” will be held at 11:30 am on Friday, 26th 
Day of September, 2025 at the registered office of the Company situated at 72/B, Barakhola Kalikapur, 
Kolkata, Kolkata, West Bengal, India, 700099, for the purpose of considering and, if thought fit, passing 
the following business: 

Ordinary Businesses:- 

1. Adoption of Financial Statements, Auditors Report and Board’s Report and for that purpose, to 
consider and if thought fit to pass with or without modification(s) the following resolution as an 
ORDINARY RESOLUTION:  

“RESOLVED THAT the Audited Financial Statements of the Company for the financial year ended 31st 
March 2025, together with the Reports of the Board of Directors and the Auditors thereon, as circulated 
to the members, be and are hereby received, considered and adopted.” 

2. Appointment of Statutory Auditors of the Company and for that purpose, to consider and if thought 
fit to pass with or without modification(s) the following resolution as an ORDINARY RESOLUTION: 
 
“RESOLVED THAT pursuant to Section 139, 141 and other applicable provisions, if any, of the 
Companies Act, 2013, as amended from time to time or any other applicable laws for the time being in 
force (including any statutory modification or amendment thereto or re-enactment thereof for the time 
being in force), M/s. S. S. KOTHARI MEHTA & CO. LLP.  , Chartered Accountants (Firm Registration 
No. : - 000756N / N500441), be and are hereby appointed as the Statutory Auditors of the Company to 
hold office from the conclusion of this Annual General Meeting until the conclusion of the Annual General 
Meeting to be held in the year 2026 i.e. from Financial Year 2025-26 on such remuneration as may be fixed 
by the Board of Directors of the Company in consultation with the said Auditors. 
 
RESOLVED FURTHER THAT any of the Directors of the Company be and is hereby severally 
authorised to sign, necessary deeds, documents, papers and forms and do such acts, deeds and things as 
may be necessary to give effect to the resolution.” 

Special Businesses: - 

3. Appointment of Dr. Monalisa Ghosh (DIN: 03491551), as a Director and for that purpose, to consider 
and if thought fit to pass with or without modification(s) the following resolution as an ORDINARY 
RESOLUTION: 

“RESOLVED THAT pursuant to the provisions of Sections 152 and other applicable provisions, if any, 
of the Companies Act, 2013 and the rules made thereunder, and in accordance with the Articles of 
Association of the Company, Dr. Monalisa Ghosh (DIN: 03491551), who was appointed as an Additional 
Director of the Company by the Board of Directors with effect from 07th May, 2025 and whose term 
expires at the Annual General Meeting of the Company be and is hereby appointed as a Director of the 
Company.”.” 

4. Appointment of Mr. Sitaram Janardan Kunte (DIN: - 02670899) as a Non-Executive Independent 
Director of the Company and for that purpose, to consider and if thought fit to pass with or without 
modification(s) the following resolution as an ORDINARY RESOLUTION: 
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" RESOLVED THAT pursuant to the provisions of Section 149, 150, 152 and 161(1) read with the 
Companies (Appointment and Qualification of Directors) Rules, 2014 and all other applicable provisions, 
if any, of the Companies Act, 2013 (‘the act’), (including any statutory modification(s) or re-enactment(s) 
thereof, for the time being in force), Mr. Sitaram Janardan Kunte (DIN: - 02670899) be and is hereby 
appointed as  a Non-Executive Independent Director of the Company, who meets all the criteria for 
independence as provided under Section 149(6) of the Act and has submitted a declaration that he meets 
the criteria for independence, not liable to retire by rotation, to hold office for a term of Three (3) 
consecutive years with effect from September 1, 2025, in accordance with the provisions of the Companies 
Act, 2013, read with the letter of appointment issued to him on August 9th, 2025.  
 
RESOLVED FURTHER THAT, any Director of the Company be and is hereby authorized to take all 
necessary actions, sign and execute all documents, filings, and to do all acts, deeds, and things as may be 
required or necessary to give effect to this resolution. 
 

5. Appointment of Mr. Durga Shanker Mishra (DIN: - 02944212) as a Non-Executive Independent 
Director of the Company and for that purpose, to consider and if thought fit to pass with or without 
modification(s) the following resolution as an ORDINARY RESOLUTION: 

 
" RESOLVED THAT pursuant to the provisions of Section 149, 150, 152 and 161(1) read with the 
Companies (Appointment and Qualification of Directors) Rules, 2014 and all other applicable provisions, 
if any, of the Companies Act, 2013 (‘the act’), (including any statutory modification(s) or re-enactment(s) 
thereof, for the time being in force), Mr. Durga Shanker Mishra (DIN: - 02944212) as a Non-Executive 
Independent Director of the Company who meets all the criteria for independence as provided under 
Section 149(6) of the Act and has submitted a declaration that he meets the criteria for independence, not 
liable to retire by rotation, to hold office for a term of Three (3) consecutive years with effect from 
September 1, 2025, in accordance with the provisions of the Companies Act, 2013, read with the letter of 
appointment issued to him on August 9th, 2025. 
 
RESOLVED FURTHER THAT, any Director of the Company be and is hereby authorized to take all 
necessary actions, sign and execute all documents, filings, and to do all acts, deeds, and things as may be 
required or necessary to give effect to this resolution. 
 

6. Appointment of Mr. Girraj Prasad Garg (DIN: - 08923522) as a Non-Executive Independent Director of 
the Company and for that purpose, to consider and if thought fit to pass with or without 
modification(s) the following resolution as an ORDINARY RESOLUTION: 

 
“RESOLVED THAT pursuant to the provisions of Section 149, 150, 152 and 161(1) read with the 
Companies (Appointment and Qualification of Directors) Rules, 2014 and all other applicable provisions, 
if any, of the Companies Act, 2013 (‘the act’), (including any statutory modification(s) or re-enactment(s) 
thereof, for the time being in force), Mr. Girraj Prasad Garg (DIN: - 08923522)  as a Non-Executive 
Independent Director of the Company who meets all the criteria for independence as provided under 
Section 149(6) of the Act and has submitted a declaration that he meets the criteria for independence, not 
liable to retire by rotation, to hold office for a term Three (3) consecutive years with effect from September 
1, 2025, in accordance with the provisions of the Companies Act, 2013, read with the letter of appointment 
issued to him on August 9th, 2025. 
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RESOLVED FURTHER THAT, any Director of the Company be and is hereby authorized to take all 
necessary actions, sign and execute all documents, filings, and to do all acts, deeds, and things as may be 
required or necessary to give effect to this resolution. 

7. Revision in Remuneration of Dr. Monalisa Ghosh, Director and for that purpose, to consider and if 
thought fit to pass with or without modification(s) the following resolution as an ORDINARY 
RESOLUTION: 

“RESOLVED THAT subject to such other approvals as may be required, the consent of the Members of 
the Company be and is hereby accorded to the 1st in the remuneration of Dr. Monalisa Ghosh (DIN: 
03491551), Additional Director of the Company, with effect from 01/10/2025, on such terms and 
conditions as set out in the Explanatory Statement annexed hereto.” 

RESOLVED FURTHER THAT, any Director of the Company be and is hereby authorized to take all 
necessary actions, sign and execute all documents, filings, and to do all acts, deeds, and things as may be 
required or necessary to give effect to this resolution. 
 
“RESOLVED FURTHER THAT, other facilities / perquisites connected with the post of Executive 
Director shall also be provided to her as per the Company’s policies.” 

8. Revision in Remuneration of Mr. Arup Choudhuri, Director and for that purpose, to consider and if 
thought fit to pass with or without modification(s) the following resolution as an ORDINARY 
RESOLUTION: 

“RESOLVED THAT subject to such other approvals as may be required, the consent of the Members of 
the Company be and is hereby accorded to the revision in the remuneration of Mr. Arup Choudhuri 
(DIN: 03491600), Director of the Company, with effect from 1st October, 2025, on such terms and 
conditions as set out in the Explanatory Statement annexed hereto.” 

“RESOLVED FURTHER THAT the Board of Directors of the Company be and is hereby authorized to 
alter and vary the terms and conditions of the appointment, including remuneration, within the overall 
limits prescribed under the Companies Act, 2013 and to take such steps as may be necessary, proper or 
expedient to give effect to this resolution.” 

“RESOLVED FURTHER THAT, other facilities / perquisites connected with the post of Managing 
Director shall also be provided to him as per the Company’s policies.” 

9. Revision in Remuneration of Mr. Jignesh Sanghavi, Director and for that purpose, to consider and if 
thought fit to pass with or without modification(s) the following resolution as an ORDINARY 
RESOLUTION: 

“RESOLVED THAT subject to such other approvals as may be required, the consent of the Members of 
the Company be and is hereby accorded to the revision in the remuneration of Mr. Jignesh Sanghavi 
(DIN: 02232988), Director of the Company, with effect from 1st October, 2025, on such terms and 
conditions as set out in the Explanatory Statement annexed hereto.” 

“RESOLVED FURTHER THAT the Board of Directors of the Company be and is hereby authorized to 
alter and vary the terms and conditions of the appointment, including remuneration, within the overall 
limits prescribed under the Companies Act, 2013 and to take such steps as may be necessary, proper or 
expedient to give effect to this resolution. 
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“RESOLVED FURTHER THAT, other facilities / perquisites connected with the post of Executive 
Director shall also be provided to him as per the Company’s policies.” 
 

10. Approval of Initial Public Offering (IPO) of Equity Shares and for that purpose, to consider and if 
thought fit to pass with or without modification(s) the following resolution as a SPECIAL 
RESOLUTION: 

“RESOLVED THAT in supersession of all earlier resolutions passed in this regard, and in accordance 
with and subject to Section 23, 62(1)(c) and all other applicable provisions, if any, of the Companies Act, 
2013 and the rules framed thereunder, including the Companies (Prospectus and Allotment of Securities) 
Rules, 2014, as amended, the Companies (Share Capital and Debenture) Rules, 2014, as amended, the 
Securities Contracts Regulation Act, 1956 (“SCRA”), and the rules framed thereunder, each as amended, 
the Securities and Exchange Board of India (Issue of Capital and Disclosure Requirements) Regulations, 
2018, as amended (“SEBI ICDR Regulations”), the Securities and Exchange Board of India (Listing 
Obligations and Disclosure Requirements) Regulations, 2015, as amended (“SEBI Listing Regulations”), 
and other applicable regulations, circulars, notifications, and guidelines issued by the Securities and 
Exchange Board of India (“SEBI”), the Foreign Exchange Management Act, 1999, as amended, and the 
rules and regulations made thereunder including the Foreign Exchange Management (Transfer or Issue 
of Security by a Person Resident Outside India) Regulations, 2017, as amended, other applicable laws, 
regulations, policies or guidelines including any foreign investment law, policy, notification, circular, 
clarification or guideline in India prescribed by the Government of India, the SEBI, or any other competent 
authority from time to time, (collectively referred to as the “Applicable Laws”), the provisions of the 
Memorandum and Articles of Association of the Company and the equity listing agreements to be entered 
into between the Company and the respective stock exchanges where the equity shares of the Company 
of face value of ₹10.00 (“Equity Shares”) are proposed to be listed (“Stock Exchanges”), and subject to the 
approval of relevant government, statutory and/or regulatory authorities, including the Department of 
Industrial Policy and Promotion, Ministry of Commerce and Industry, Government of India (“DIPP”), 
the SEBI, the Reserve Bank of India (“RBI”), the Registrar of Companies, Mumbai, Maharashtra, (“RoC”), 
the Stock Exchange and such other approvals, as may be necessary and subject to such conditions and 
modifications as may be prescribed or imposed by any of them while granting such approvals, consents, 
permissions and sanctions, the consent, approval and sanction of the members of the Company, be and 
is hereby granted to create, issue, offer and allot Equity Shares, for cash either at par or premium, such 
that the amount that is being raised be and hereby modified pursuant to such issue aggregating up to ₹ 
95,00,00,000/- (Rupees Ninety Five Crores Only  (“Fresh Issue”), together with an offer for sale by certain 
existing shareholders of the Company, for up to such number of Equity Shares held by them that are 
eligible for the offer for sale in accordance with the SEBI ICDR Regulations (“Offer for Sale” and such 
shareholders, the “Selling Shareholders”; the Offer for Sale together with the Fresh Issue, the “Issue”), 
(with an option to the Company to retain an over-subscription to the extent of 10% of the Issue Size, or 
such other extent as may be permitted under the Applicable Laws, for the purpose of rounding off to the 
nearest integer while finalising the basis of allotment) in terms of the SEBI ICDR Regulations at a price at 
such premium or at par per Equity Shares to be determined, by the Company and Selling Shareholders, 
in consultation with the Lead Manager so appointed by the Fixed Price process in terms of the SEBI ICDR 
Regulations or otherwise  in accordance with Applicable Laws. 

RESOLVED FURTHER THAT in accordance with Applicable Laws, the Issue may include, without 
limitation, issuance and allotment of Equity Shares, in terms of the SEBI ICDR Regulations and 
reservation of a certain number of Equity Shares to be offered to such person or persons, who may or may 
not be the members of the Company and as the Board may at its discretion decide in consultation with 
the Lead Manager and as may be permissible under Applicable Laws. 

RESOLVED FURTHER THAT the board may invite the existing shareholders of the Company to 
participate in the Issue by making an Offer for Sale in relation to such number of Equity Shares held by 
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them, and which are eligible for the Offer for Sale in accordance with the SEBI ICDR Regulations, as the 
Board may determine in consultation with the Lead Manager, subject to the consent, approvals, 
permissions and sanctions of such concerned regulatory/statutory authorities, if and to the extent 
applicable, at a price to be determined, by the Company and the Selling Shareholders in consultation with 
Lead Manager through the Fixed Price process in terms of the SEBI ICDR Regulations or otherwise in 
accordance with Applicable laws, at such premium or discount or at par per Equity Share as permitted 
under Applicable Laws which shall be fixed and determined by the company and the Selling 
Shareholders, in consultation with the Lead Manager, in accordance with the SEBI ICDR Regulations. 

RESOLVED FURTHER THAT the Issue may be made to foreign investors such as registered foreign 
portfolio investors, alternative investment funds, foreign venture capital investors, non-resident Indians, 
as well as state industrial development corporations, venture capital funds, insurance companies 
registered with the Insurance Regulatory and Development Authority of India, insurance funds set up 
and managed by army, navy or air force of the Union of India, insurance funds set up and managed by 
the Department of Posts, Ministry of Communications and Information Technology, India, scheduled 
commercial banks, provident funds, pension funds, national investment fund, trusts/ societies registered 
under the Societies Registration Act, 1850, as amended, systemically important non-banking financial 
companies, development financial institutions and/or multilateral and bilateral development financial 
institutions, Hindu undivided families, mutual funds, employees and/or workers of the Company, in or 
out of India (through a reservation or otherwise), Indian public, bodies corporate, any other 
company/companies, private or public or other body corporate(s) or entities whether incorporated or 
not, and such other persons, including high net worth individuals, retail individual investors or other 
entities, in one or more combinations thereof and/or any other categories of investors as may be 
permitted under Applicable Laws, including anchor investors as defined under the SEBI ICDR 
Regulations, whether they be holders of Equity Shares or not, in a manner, and in one or more tranches 
in consultation with the Lead Manager and/or underwriters and/or other advisors or such persons 
appointed for the Issue and on the terms and conditions as the Board may in its discretion, in consultation 
with the Lead Manager, decide including the price at which the Equity Shares are to be issued, at par or 
at premium and for cash as determined in accordance with the provisions of the SEBI ICDR Regulations 
or other considerations that the Board may, in consultation with the Lead Manager, deem fit. 

RESOLVED FURTHER THAT the Equity Shares so allotted or transferred in the Issue (including 
pursuant to any Reservation) shall be subject to the Memorandum and the Articles of Association of the 
Company and shall rank pari passu in all respects with existing Equity Shares of the Company including 
rights in respect of dividend after the date of allotment. 

RESOLVED FURTHER THAT BSE Limited is the Designated Stock Exchange. 

RESOLVED FURTHER THAT subject to the Applicable Laws, the Equity Shares allotted or transferred 
pursuant to the Issue shall be listed on Designated Stock Exchange. 

RESOLVED FURTHER THAT subject to the Applicable Laws, the Board be and is hereby authorised to 
delegate all or any of the powers herein conferred in such manner as it may deem fit. 

RESOLVED FURTHER THAT the Board be and is hereby authorised to do such acts, deeds and things 
as the Board in its absolute discretion deems necessary or desirable in connection with the Issue, including 
without limitation, the following: 

(i) To make applications to seek clarifications and obtain approvals from, where necessary, the SEBI, 
the Reserve Bank of India (“RBI”) and any other governmental or statutory/regulatory authorities as may 
be required in connection with the Issue and accept on behalf of the Board such conditions and 
modifications as may be prescribed or imposed by any of them while granting such approvals, 
permissions and sanctions as may be required; 
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(ii) To appoint and enter into arrangement with Lead Manager, underwriters to the Issue, advisors 
to the Issue (if any), escrow collection bank to the Issue, registrar to the Issue, sponsor bank, refund 
bank(s) to the Issue, public issue account bank to the Issue, advertising agency(ies), legal counsel and any 
other agencies or persons or intermediaries to the Issue and to negotiate and finalise and amend the terms 
of their appointment, including but not limited to execution of the Lead Manager mandate letter, 
negotiation, finalisation, execution and, if required, the amendment of the Issue agreement with the Lead 
Manager and the underwriting agreement with the underwriters; 

(iii) To invite the existing shareholders of the Company to participate in the Issue by offering for sale 
the Equity Shares held by them at the same price as in the Issue; 

(iv) To take all actions as may be necessary and authorised in connection with the Offer for Sale and 
to approve and take on record the approval of the Selling Shareholder(s) for offering their Equity Shares 
in the Offer for Sale and the transfer of Equity Shares in the Offer for Sale; 

(v) To negotiate, finalise, settle, execute and deliver or arrange the delivery of the Issue agreement, 
registrar agreement, underwriting agreement, cash escrow agreement, share escrow agreement, sponsor 
bank agreement, and all other documents, deeds, agreements, memorandum of understanding and any 
notices, supplements and corrigenda thereto, as may be required or desirable, and other instruments 
whatsoever with the registrar to the Issue, legal advisors, auditors, Stock Exchange, Lead Manager and 
any other agencies/intermediaries in connection with the Issue with the power to authorise one or more 
officers of the Company to negotiate, execute and deliver all or any of the afore-stated documents; 

(vi) To decide with the Selling Shareholders and in consultation with the Lead Manager on the size, 
timing, pricing, reservation and all the terms and conditions of the Issue, including Issue Price, Issue 
period, and to accept any amendments, modifications, variations or alterations thereto; 

(vii) To take all actions as may be necessary in connection with the Issue, including extending the Issue 
period, allow revision of the Offer for sale portion in case the Selling Shareholders decides to revise it, in 
accordance with the Applicable laws; 

(viii) to finalise, approve, adopt, deliver and arrange for, in consultation with the Lead Manager, 
submission of the Draft Prospectus and the Prospectus (including amending, varying or modifying the 
same, as may be considered desirable or expedient), and any amendments, supplements, notices or 
corrigenda thereto for the offer of Equity Shares including incorporating such 
alterations/corrections/modifications as may be required by Stock Exchange, ROC, or any other relevant 
governmental and statutory authorities or in accordance with all Applicable Law; 

(ix) To seek, if required, the consent of the lenders of the Company, parties with whom the Company 
has entered into various commercial and other agreements, all concerned government and regulatory 
authorities in India or outside India, and any other consents that may be required in relation to the Issue 
or any actions connected therewith; 

(x) To make applications to seek clarifications and obtain approvals from, if necessary, the Stock 
Exchange, the Registrar of Companies or any other statutory or governmental authorities in connection 
with the Issue and, wherever necessary, incorporate such 
modifications/amendments/alterations/corrections as may be required in the Draft Prospectus, and the 
Prospectus; 

(xi) To open and operate bank account(s) of the Company in terms of the cash escrow agreement and 
to authorise one or more officers of the Company to execute all documents/deeds as may be necessary in 
this regard; 
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(xii) To authorise and approve incurring of expenditure and payment of fees, commissions, brokerage, 
remuneration and reimbursement of expenses in connection with the Issue; 

(xiii) To approve code of conduct as may be considered necessary or as required under Applicable 
Laws for the Board, officers of the Company and other employees of the Company; 

(xiv) To authorise any concerned person on behalf of the Company to give such declarations, 
affidavits, certificates, consents and authorities as may be required from time to time in relation to the 
Issue; 

(xv) To approve suitable policies in relation to the Issue as may be required under Applicable Laws; 

(xvi) To approve any corporate governance requirement that may be considered necessary by the 
Board or as may be required under Applicable Laws, in connection with the Issue; 

(xvii) To authorise and approve notices, advertisements in relation to the Issue in consultation with the 
relevant intermediaries appointed for the Issue; 

(xviii) To open and operate bank accounts of the Company in terms of Section 40(3) of the Companies 
Act, 2013 or as may be required by the regulations issued by SEBI and to authorise one or more officers 
of the Company to execute all documents/deeds as may be necessary in this regard; 

(xix) To determine and finalise the issue opening and issue closing dates, the Issue price, approve the 
basis for allocation/allotment and confirm allocation/allotment of the Equity Shares to various categories 
of persons as disclosed in the Draft Prospectus and the Prospectus, in consultation with the Lead 
Manager; 

(xx) To issue receipts/allotment letters/confirmation of allocation notes either in physical or 
electronic mode representing the underlying Equity Shares in the capital of the Company with such 
features and attributes as may be required and to provide for the tradability and free transferability 
thereof as per market practices and regulations, including listing on the Stock Exchange, with power to 
authorise one or more officers of the Company to sign all or any of the afore-stated documents; 

(xxi) To withdraw the Draft Prospectus or the Prospectus or not to proceed with the Issue at any stage, 
if considered necessary and expedient, in accordance with Applicable laws; 

(xxii) To authorise and approve notices, advertisements in relation to the Issue in consultation with the 
relevant intermediaries appointed for the Issue; 

(xxiii) To make applications for listing of Equity Shares on the Stock Exchange and to execute and to 
deliver or arrange the delivery of necessary documentation to the Stock Exchange and to take all such 
other actions as may be necessary in connection with obtaining such listing; 

(xxiv) To do all such deeds and acts as may be required to dematerialise the Equity Shares and to sign 
and/or modify, as the case may be, agreements and/or such other documents as may be required with 
National Securities Depository Limited, Central Depository Services (India) Limited, registrar and 
transfer agents and such other agencies, as may be required in this connection with power to authorise 
one or more officers of the Company to execute all or any of the afore-stated documents; 

(xxv) To do all such acts, deeds, matters and things and execute all such other documents, etc., as it 
may, in its absolute discretion, deem necessary or desirable for the Issue, in consultation with the Lead 
Manager, including without limitation, finalising the basis of allocation and allotment of Equity Shares to 
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the successful allottees and credit of Equity Shares to the demat accounts of the successful allottees in 
accordance with Applicable Laws; 

(xxvi) To settle all questions, difficulties or doubts that may arise in regard to the Issue, including such 
issues or allotment and matters incidental thereto as it may deem fit and to delegate such of its powers as 
may be deemed necessary and permissible under Applicable laws to the officials of the Company; 

(xxvii) To approve the expenditure in relation to the Issue; 

(xxviii) To take such action, give such directions, as may be necessary or desirable as regards the Issue 
and to do all such acts, matters, deeds and things, including but not limited to the allotment of Equity 
Shares against the valid applications received in the Issue, as are in the best interests of the Company; 

(xxix) To negotiate, finalise, settle, execute and deliver any and all other documents or instruments and 
doing or causing to be done any and all acts or things as the Board may deem necessary, appropriate or 
advisable in order to carry out the purposes and intent of the foregoing or in connection with the Issue 
and any documents or instruments so executed and delivered or acts and things done or caused to be 
done by the Board shall be conclusive evidence of the authority of the Board in so doing; 

(xxx) To accept and appropriate the proceeds of the Fresh Issue in accordance with Applicable Laws. 

RESOLVED FURTHER THAT for the purpose of giving effect to the above resolutions and any issue, 
transfer and allotment of Equity Shares pursuant to the Issue, the Board be and is hereby authorised to 
settle all questions, remove any difficulties or doubts that may arise from time to time in regard to the 
issue, offer or allotment of the Equity Shares in the Issue and the utilisation of the Issue proceeds in 
accordance with the purposes specified in the Issue documents, and to give such directions and/or 
instructions as it may from time to time decide and to accept and give effect to such modifications, 
changes, variations, alterations, deletions, additions as regards the terms and conditions, to vary the size 
of the Issue, determine the class of investors to whom the securities are to be allotted, the number of 
securities to be allotted in each tranche, issue price, premium amount on issue, listing on one or more 
stock exchanges in India, appoint Lead Manager, appoint in consultation with the Lead Manager, other 
intermediaries such as legal counsels, banks or agencies concerned, enter into any agreements or other 
instruments for such purpose, remunerate all such intermediaries/agencies including the payments of 
commissions, brokerages, fees and the like, and to take such actions or give such directions as may be 
necessary or desirable and to obtain any approvals, permissions, sanctions which may be necessary or 
desirable, as it may deem fit or as the Board may decide in its absolute discretion in the best interests of 
the Company without being required to seek any further consent or approval of the members or otherwise 
to the end and intent that the members shall be deemed to have given their approval thereto expressly by 
the authority of this resolution and to do all such acts, deeds, matters to do things whatsoever, including 
settle any question, doubt or difficulty that may arise with regard to or in relation to raising of funds as 
authorised herein, and that all or any of the powers conferred on the Board or a committee thereof vide 
this resolution may be exercised by the Board or such committee. 

RESOLVED FURTHER THAT the Directors of the Company be and is hereby authorised to file 
necessary forms with the Registrar of Companies and execute and sign all relevant documents including 
but not limited to consent letters, powers of attorney, certificates etc., as may be required in order to give 
effect to these resolutions and any such documents so executed and delivered or acts and things done or 
caused to be done shall be conclusive evidence of the authority of the Company in so doing and any 
document so executed and delivered or acts and things done or caused to be done prior to the date hereof 
are hereby ratified, confirmed and approved as the acts and deeds of the Company, as the case may be. 
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RESOLVED FURTHER THAT in relation to the Issue, any decision regarding the Issue may be made by 
the Company together with, or in consultation with the Selling Shareholders and the Lead Manager as 
may be mutually agreed upon in terms of any agreement in connection with the Issue. 

RESOLVED FURTHER THAT certified copies of this resolution be provided to those concerned under 
the hands of a Director or Company Secretary of the Company wherever required.” 

11. Approval under Section 186 of the Companies Act, 2013 and for that purpose, to consider and if 
thought fit to pass with or without modification(s) the following resolution as a SPECIAL 
RESOLUTION: 

“RESOLVED THAT pursuant to the provisions of Section 186 and other applicable provisions, if any, of 
the Companies Act, 2013 and the rules made thereunder (including any statutory modification(s) or re-
enactment(s) thereof for the time being in force), the consent of the Members of the Company be and is 
hereby accorded to the Board of Directors of the Company to: 

• give any loan(s) to any person or other body corporate(s); 

• give any guarantee(s) or provide any security(ies) in connection with a loan to any other body 
corporate(s) or person(s); and 

• acquire by way of subscription, purchase or otherwise the securities of any other body 
corporate(s), 

as the Board may in its absolute discretion deem beneficial and in the interest of the Company, for such 
sums as may exceed the limits specified under Section 186(2) of the Companies Act, 2013, provided that 
the aggregate of such loans, guarantees, securities and investments outstanding at any time shall not 
exceed  Rs._20.00 Lacs (Rupees Twenty Lacs only). 

RESOLVED FURTHER THAT the Board of Directors be and is hereby authorized to negotiate, finalize 
and agree the terms and conditions of the aforesaid loans, investments, guarantees and securities, and to 
do all such acts, deeds, matters and things as may be deemed necessary, desirable, proper or expedient 
for the purpose of giving effect to this resolution.” 

By Order of the Board of  
Sotefin Bharat Private Limited 
( CIN : U29221WB2012PTC175825 ) 
 
 
 
 
CS Biswajit Das 
Company Secretary 
ICSI Membership No. A69421 
Date: - 04.09.2025 
Place:- Kolkata 
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Notes:  

1. A member entitled to attend and vote at the meeting is entitled to appoint one or more proxies to 
attend and vote instead of him and the proxy need not be a member of the Company. 
 

2. Proxies in order to be effective must be received by the Company not less than 48 hours before 
the meeting at the Registered Office of the Company. 
 
 

3. An explanatory statement pursuant to Section 102 of the Companies Act, 2013, in respect of 
special business items is annexed hereto. 
 

4. All documents referred to in the accompanying notice and the statement shall be open for 
inspection at the Registered Office of the Company during normal business hours from 11:00 AM 
to 1:00 PM (IST) on all working days, up to and including the date of the Annual General Meeting 
of the Company and will also be available for inspection at the Meeting. 
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Note: Please refer route map to the AGM Venue 
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Explanatory Statement 
(Pursuant to Section 102 (1) of the Companies Act, 2013) 

 
Special Businesses:- 
 
Item No. 3: 
Appointment of Dr. Monalisa Ghosh (DIN: 03491551), as a Director: 
 
Ms. Monalisa Ghosh (DIN: 03491551) was appointed as an Additional Director of the Company by the 
Board of Directors with effect from 07th May, 2025  in terms of Section 161(1) of the Companies Act, 2013. 
She holds office up to the date of this Annual General Meeting. 
The Company has received from her consent to act as a Director in Form DIR-2 and a declaration that she 
is not disqualified from being appointed as a Director. 
The Board recommends passing of the resolution at Item No. 3 as an Ordinary Resolution. 
Except Ms. Monalisa Ghosh, none of the other Directors, KMPs and their relatives are concerned or 
interested in this resolution. 
 
Item No. 4: 
Appointment of Mr. Sitaram Janardan Kunte (DIN: - 02670899) as a Non-Executive Independent 
Director of the Company: 

Profile: Sitaram Janardan Kunte  

Sitaram Janardan Kunte is a seasoned civil servant with 36 years of experience in the Indian 
Administrative Service (IAS).  He has held key positions at both district and state levels, contributing 
significantly to public administration, governance, and policy formulation.  His expertise spans areas 
such as public affairs, governance, public policy implementation, and service transformation.  

Mr. Kunte has served as Chief Secretary, Government of Maharashtra, where he led efforts to combat the 
COVID-19 pandemic, ensuring healthcare infrastructure, economic revival, and inter-agency 
coordination for large infrastructure projects.  He has also held prominent roles such as Additional Chief 
Secretary (Home Department), Municipal Commissioner (MCGM), and Principal Secretary in various 
departments, including Finance, Environment, Energy, and Higher & Technical Education. 

An accomplished academic, Mr. Kunte holds an MA in Economics from Delhi School of Economics, a 
Master's in Social Sciences from the University of Birmingham, and an LLB from Mumbai University.  He 
has also completed advanced courses in policy analysis, leadership, and negotiations from prestigious 
institutions like Harvard and UC Berkeley. 

Throughout his career, Mr. Kunte has driven reforms in citizen service delivery, urban development, 
housing regulations, and higher education. He has chaired multiple committees addressing governance 
challenges and led the drafting of key legislations, including the Maharashtra Universities Act and the 
Shakti Criminal Laws (Maharashtra Amendment) Bill, 2020.  

Currently, he serves as an Independent Board Director, Arbitrator, Teacher, and Advisor, continuing his 
commitment to public service and governance excellence.  

Considering the above profile, the appointment of Mr. Sitaram Janardan Kunte, as a Non-Executive 
Independent Director is in the interest of the Company. Accordingly, the Board of Directors of the 
Company at their meeting held on Friday, 1st August 2025, recommended him to be appointed as a Non-
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Executive Independent Director of Company, for a first term of 3 (Three) consecutive years, w.e.f. 1st 
September 2025, subject to approval of shareholders at ensuing General Meeting of the Company. 

 
Mr. Sitaram Janardan Kunte is not disqualified from being appointed as a Director in terms of Section 164 
of the Act and has given their consent to act as director.  
 
The Company has received requisite declaration from Mr. Sitaram Janardan Kunte, that they meet the 
criteria of Independence as prescribed under Section 149(6) of the Act and also declaration of compliance 
as required under rule 6(3) of Companies (Appointment and Qualification of Directors) Rules, 2014.  
 
The Company has also received notices under Section 160 of the Act from members proposing the 
candidature of Mr. Sitaram Janardan Kunte for the office of Director of the Company. 
 
In the opinion of the Board, Mr. Sitaram Janardan Kunte, fulfils the conditions for appointment as a Non-
Executive Independent Director as specified in the Act and is independent of the management and 
possesses appropriate skills, experience knowledge and capabilities required for the role of a Non-
Executive Independent. 
He shall be paid remuneration by way of fee for attending meetings of the Board or Committees thereof 
or for any other purpose as may be decided by the Board, reimbursement of expenses for participating in 
the Board and Committees meetings.  
Copy of the letter of appointment setting out the terms and conditions of his appointment and other 
relevant documents will be available for inspection in physical or electronic form at the registered office 
of the company on all working days except Saturdays, Sundays and other public holidays between 11.00 
a.m. to 1.00 p.m. up to the date of AGM and at the AGM.  
None of the Directors / Key Managerial Personnel of the Company / their relatives are, in any way, 
concerned or interested, financially or otherwise, in the resolution as set out in item no. 4 of this notice.  
Your directors recommend this Ordinary Resolution for your kind consideration and approval. 
 
Item No. 5: 
Appointment of Mr. Durga Shanker Mishra (DIN: - 02944212) as a Non-Executive Independent 
Director of the Company: 
 
Profile: Durga Shanker Mishra 

Durga Shanker Mishra is an accomplished Indian Administrative Services (IAS) officer of the 1984 batch 
from the Uttar Pradesh cadre.  Born on December 4, 1961, he has held several key positions in the 
Government of India and Uttar Pradesh, including Chief Secretary of Uttar Pradesh (2021–2024) and 
Secretary, Ministry of Housing & Urban Affairs (2017–2021).  

He holds a B.Tech. in Electrical Engineering from IIT Kanpur, an MBA in International Business from the 
University of Western Sydney, and multiple postgraduate diplomas in governance and human resource 
management.  His career spans diverse roles, such as District Magistrate, Principal Secretary, and Joint 
Secretary, with significant contributions to urban development, governance reforms, and infrastructure 
projects like the Central Vista redevelopment.  

Mishra has been recognized with prestigious awards, including the Distinguished Alumnus Award from 
IIT Kanpur and several academic honors.  He is also a prolific writer, contributing to national and 
international publications on urban development, governance, and sustainability. His leadership has 
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driven transformative initiatives in urban planning, e-governance, and public service delivery, earning 
him a reputation for ethical and solution-focused governance.  

Considering the above profile, the appointment of Mr. Durga Shanker Mishra, as a Non-Executive 
Independent Director is in the interest of the Company. Accordingly, the Board of Directors of the 
Company at their meeting held on Friday, 1st August 2025, recommended him to be appointed as a Non-
Executive Independent Director of Company, for a first term of 3 (Three) consecutive years, w.e.f. 1st 
September 2025, subject to approval of shareholders at ensuing General Meeting of the Company. 

. 
Mr. Durga Shanker Mishra is not disqualified from being appointed as a Director in terms of Section 164 
of the Act and has given their consent to act as director.  
 
The Company has received requisite declaration from Mr. Durga Shanker Mishra, that they meet the 
criteria of Independence as prescribed under Section 149(6) of the Act and also declaration of compliance 
as required under rule 6(3) of Companies (Appointment and Qualification of Directors) Rules, 2014.  
 
The Company has also received notices under Section 160 of the Act from members proposing the 
candidature of Mr. Durga Shanker Mishra for the office of Director of the Company. 
 
In the opinion of the Board, Mr. Durga Shanker Mishra, fulfils the conditions for appointment as a Non-
Executive Independent Director as specified in the Act and is independent of the management and 
possesses appropriate skills, experience knowledge and capabilities required for the role of a Non-
Executive Independent. 
 
He shall be paid remuneration by way of fee for attending meetings of the Board or Committees thereof 
or for any other purpose as may be decided by the Board, reimbursement of expenses for participating in 
the Board and Committees meetings.  
 
Copy of the letter of appointment setting out the terms and conditions of his appointment and other 
relevant documents will be available for inspection in physical or electronic form at the registered office 
of the company on all working days except Saturdays, Sundays and other public holidays between 11.00 
a.m. to 1.00 p.m. up to the date of AGM and at the AGM.  
 
None of the Directors / Key Managerial Personnel of the Company / their relatives is, in any way, 
concerned or interested, financially or otherwise, in the resolution as set out in item no. 5 of this notice.  
 
Your directors recommend this Ordinary Resolution for your kind consideration and approval. 
 
Item No. 6: 
Appointment of Mr. Girraj Prasad Garg (DIN: - 08923522) as a Non-Executive Independent Director of 
the Company: 
 
Profile: Girraj Prasad Garg  
 
Girraj Prasad Garg is a Former Executive Director, Securities and Exchange Board of India (SEBI)  
He is a seasoned financial regulator with over 30 years of experience at SEBI, where he led six departments 
and played a pivotal role in shaping India's securities market.  He pioneered financial literacy initiatives, 
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including the establishment of the National Institute of Securities Markets (NISM) and the National 
Centre for Financial Education (NCFE).  
 
Key achievements include launching the SCORES grievance redressal platform, India's first Smart Online 
Dispute Resolution (ODR) portal, and the Saarthi App for investor education.  He also integrated financial 
literacy into school curricula and expanded outreach programs to millions of small investors.  
 
As Registrar of NISM, he oversaw the development of its state-of-the-art campus and introduced digital 
certification processes, significantly increasing enrollment. He also contributed to SEBI’s IT infrastructure, 
enforcement mechanisms, and financial stability.  
 
Internationally, he represented India at OECD and IOSCO, sharing insights on financial literacy and 
investor protection.  His leadership has left a lasting impact on India's financial ecosystem.  
Education: MBA (Finance), MIE, LL. B  
 
Considering the above profile, the appointment of Mr. Girraj Prasad Garg, as a Non-Executive 
Independent Director is in the interest of the Company. Accordingly, the Board of Directors of the 
Company at their meeting held on Friday, 1st August 2025, recommended him to be appointed as a Non-
Executive Independent Director of Company, for a first term of 3 (Three) consecutive years, w.e.f. 1st 
September 2025, subject to approval of shareholders at ensuing General Meeting of the Company. 

 
Mr. Girraj Prasad Garg is not disqualified from being appointed as a Director in terms of Section 164 of 
the Act and has given their consent to act as director.  
 
The Company has received requisite declaration from Mr. Girraj Prasad Garg, that they meet the criteria 
of Independence as prescribed under Section 149(6) of the Act and also declaration of compliance as 
required under rule 6(3) of Companies (Appointment and Qualification of Directors) Rules, 2014.  
 
The Company has also received notices under Section 160 of the Act from members proposing the 
candidature of Mr. Girraj Prasad Garg for the office of Director of the Company. 
 
In the opinion of the Board, Mr. Girraj Prasad Garg, fulfils the conditions for appointment as a Non-
Executive Independent Director as specified in the Act and is independent of the management and 
possesses appropriate skills, experience knowledge and capabilities required for the role of a Non-
Executive Independent. 
 
He shall be paid remuneration by way of fee for attending meetings of the Board or Committees thereof 
or for any other purpose as may be decided by the Board, reimbursement of expenses for participating in 
the Board and Committees meetings.  
 
Copy of the letter of appointment setting out the terms and conditions of his appointment and other 
relevant documents will be available for inspection in physical or electronic form at the registered office 
of the company on all working days except Saturdays, Sundays and other public holidays between 11.00 
a.m. to 1.00 p.m. up to the date of AGM and at the AGM.  
 
None of the Directors / Key Managerial Personnel of the Company / their relatives are, in any way, 
concerned or interested, financially or otherwise, in the resolution as set out in item no. 6 of this notice.  
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Your directors recommend this Ordinary Resolution for your kind consideration and approval. 
 
Item No. 7:  
Revision in Remuneration of Dr.  Monalisa Ghosh: 

The Members had earlier approved the remuneration of Dr. Monalisa Ghosh (DIN: 03491551), Executive 
Director of the Company. Considering her significant contribution and responsibilities, the Board of 
Directors, has approved her remuneration of amount Rs 2,50,000.00 per month in addition to, other 
facilities / perquisites connected with the post of Executive Director , with effect from 1/10/25 subject to 
the approval of Members. 
 
The proposed remuneration is in line with the provisions. 
 
The Board recommends passing of the resolution at Item No. 7 as par Resolution. 
 
Except Dr. Monalisa Ghosh, none of the other Directors, KMPs and their relatives are concerned or 
interested in this resolution. 
 
Item No.8:  
Revision in Remuneration of Mr. Arup Choudhuri: 
 
The Members had earlier approved the revision of remuneration of Mr. Arup Choudhuri (DIN: 03491600), 
Managing Director of the Company. Considering his expanded role and responsibilities, the Board of 
Directors, has approved the revision of his remuneration of Rs 5,00,000.00 per month in addition to, other 
facilities / perquisites connected with the post of Managing Director , with effect from 1/10/25 subject 
to the approval of Members 
The proposed remuneration is in line with the provisions. 
The Board recommends passing of the resolution at Item No. 8 as par Resolution. 
Except Mr. Arup Choudhuri, none of the other Directors, KMPs and their relatives are concerned or 
interested in this resolution. 
 
Item No.9:  
Revision in Remuneration of Mr. Jignesh Sanghavi: 
 
The Members had earlier approved the revision of remuneration of Mr. Jignesh Sanghavi (DIN: 02232988) 
Executive Director of the Company. Considering his expanded role and responsibilities, the Board of 
Directors, has approved the revision of his remuneration of Rs 4,50,000.00 per month in addition to, other 
facilities / perquisites connected with the post of Executive Director , with effect from 1/10/25 subject to 
the approval of Members. 
 
The proposed remuneration is in line with the provisions. 
 
The Board recommends passing of the resolution at Item No. 9 as par Resolution. 
 
Except Mr. Jignesh Sanghavi, none of the other Directors, KMPs and their relatives are concerned or 
interested in this resolution 
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Item No. 10: 
Approval of Initial Public Offering (IPO) 
 
The Board of Directors proposes to undertake an Initial Public Offering (IPO) of the Company’s equity 
shares in order to raise funds for business expansion, repayment of borrowings and general corporate 
purposes. 
 
In accordance with the provisions of Sections 23, 62 and other applicable provisions of the Companies 
Act, 2013 and SEBI (ICDR) Regulations, approval of Members is required for authorizing the Board to 
undertake the IPO. 
 
The Board recommends passing of the resolution at Item No. 9 as a Special Resolution. 
 
None of the Directors, KMPs or their relatives are concerned or interested in this resolution. 
 
Item No. 11: 
 Approval under Section 186 – Loans, Guarantees and Investments 
 
Section 186 of the Companies Act, 2013 lays down the provisions relating to loans, guarantees, 
investments and provision of security by a company. The Company, in the course of its business and to 
achieve its strategic objectives, may be required to provide loans, guarantees, securities or make 
investments in bodies corporate. 
 
Although the limits prescribed under Section 186 are adequate for the Company’s current operations, the 
Members’ approval is sought to authorise the Board of Directors to exercise such powers for making 
loans, giving guarantees, providing securities and making investments, as may be necessary for the 
business of the Company, from time to time. 
 
The proposed resolution seeks to provide the Board of Directors with enabling authority in this regard, 
subject to the overall limits as may be prescribed under the Act. 
 
The Board recommends passing of the resolution at Item No. 11 as a Special Resolution. 
None of the Directors, Key Managerial Personnel or their relatives are in any way concerned or interested, 
financially or otherwise, in this resolution. 
 
By Order of the Board of  
Sotefin Bharat Private Limited 
( CIN : U29221WB2012PTC175825 ) 
 
 
 
 
CS Biswajit Das 
Company Secretary 
ICSI Membership No. A69421 
Date: - 04.09.2025 
Place:- Kolkata 
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ATTENDANCE SLIP 

 
Name of the Company: Sotefin Bharat Private Limited 
Registered Address: 72/B, Barakhola Kalikapur, Kolkata, Kolkata, West Bengal, 

India, 700099 
Corporate Identity Number (CIN): U29221WB2012PTC175825 
Email ID: info@sotefinbharat.com 
Telephone: +91-7044018485 
Website: www.sotefinbharat.com 
 
Annual General Meeting of FY 2024-25  scheduled on Friday, 26th Day of September, 2025 at 11:30 am  
 
Folio No. / DP ID Client ID No.  
Name of First named Member /Proxy / 
Authorised Representative 

 

Name of Joint Member(s), if any:  
No. of Shares held  
 
I/we certify that I/we am/are member(s)/proxy for the member(s) of the Company. 
 
I/we hereby record my/our presence at the Annual General Meeting of FY 2024-25 of the Company being 
held on ______, at time ____ at 72/B, Barakhola Kalikapur, Kolkata, Kolkata, West Bengal, India, 700099. 
 
Signature of First holder/Proxy/Authorised Representative 
 
Signature of 1st Joint holder 
 
Signature of 2nd Joint holder 
 
Note(s): 
 
1. Please sign this attendance slip and hand it over at the Attendance Verification Counter at the Meeting 

Venue. 
 

2. Only Members of the Company and/or their Proxy will be allowed to attend the Meeting. 
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PROXY FORM 
Form No. MGT-11 

[Pursuant to Section 105(6) of the Companies Act, 2013 and Rule 19(3) of the Companies (Management and Administration) Rules, 2014] 
Name of the Company: Sotefin Bharat Private Limited 
Registered Address: 72/B, Barakhola Kalikapur, Kolkata, Kolkata, West Bengal, India, 700099 

Corporate Identity Number (CIN): U29221WB2012PTC175825 

Email ID: info@sotefinbharat.com 

Telephone: +91-7044018485 
Website: www.sotefinbharat.com 
Annual General Meeting of FY 2024-25  scheduled on Friday, 26th Day of September, 2025 at 11:30 am  
Name of the Member(s):  

Registered address:  

Email ID:  

Folio No.:  

 
I/ We, being the holder(s) of   equity shares of ___________________ Limited, hereby 
appoint: 
1. 
Name:  

E-mail ID:  

Address:  

Signature:  

 
or falling him/her 2. 
Name:  

E-mail ID:  

Address:  

Signature:  

 
As my / our proxy to attend and vote for me/us and on my/our behalf at the Annual General Meeting of FY 2024-25 of the Company 
being held on _______, at time ____ at 72/B, Barakhola Kalikapur, Kolkata, Kolkata, West Bengal, India, 700099 and at any 
adjournment thereof in respect of such Resolution as indicate the Notice. 
 
 
Signed this _____________. 
 
 
 
Signature of Member / Shareholder 
 
Signature of Proxy holder(s) 
 
Note: This form of proxy in order to be effective should be duly completed and deposited at the Registered Office of the Company 
not less than 48 hours before the commencement of the Meeting. 













S S KOTHARI MEHTA- &CO LLP
CHARTERED ACCOUNTANTS

INDEPENDENT AUDITOR'S REPORT
TO THE MEMBERS OF SOTEFIN BHARAT PRIVATE LIMITED ( Formerly Known as Sotefin
Parking Private Limited)

Report on the Audit of Financial Statements

Opinion

We have audited the accompanying financial statements of Sotefin Bharat Private Limited (Formerly
known as Sotefin Parking Private Limited) ("the Compafly"), which comprise the Balance sheet as at
March 31,2025, the Statement of Profit and Loss and Cash Flow Statement for the year then ended and
notes to the financial statements, including a summary of the significant accounting policies and other
explanatory information (hereinafter referred to as oothe financial statements").

In our opinion and to the best of our information and according to the explanations given to us, , the
aforesaid financial statements give the information required by the Companies Act 2013 ('the Act') in the
manner so required and give a true and fair view in conformity with the accounting principles generally
accepted in India, of the state of affairs of the Company as at March 31 , 2025 , its profit and its cash flows
for the year ended on that date.

Basis for Opinion

We conducted our audit of the financial statements in accordance with the Standards on Auditing (SAs)
specified under section 143(10) of the Act,2013. Our responsibilities under those Standards are further
described in the Auditor's Responsibilities for the Audit of the Financial Statements section of our report.
We are independent of the Company in accordance with the Code of Ethics issued by the Institute of
Chartered Accountants of India (ICAI) together witli the ethical requirements that are relevant to our audit
of the financial staternents under the provisions of tlre Act, and the Rules thereunder, and we have fulfilled
our other ethical responsibilities in accordance with these requiretneuts aud the ICAI's Code of [thics.
We believe that the audit evidence we have obtained is sufficient and appropriate to provide a basis for
our opinion.

Information Other than the Financial Statements and Auditor's Report Thereon

The Cornpany's Board of Directors is responsible for the preparation of other information. The other
infbrmation comprise the infbrmatiorr included in the Board's Reporl including Annexures to Roarcl's
Report, and Shareholder's Information, but does not include tlie financial statements and our auditor's
renorf thereon.

Our opinion on the financial staternents does not cover tlre other infbrmatiorr aud we will not express atty
lornr of a-ssr r ra,lroe or" c:onr:l u s i rln tlrereon.
In conneetion with our aLrdit of the financial statements, our rcsponsibility is to reacl tlre other infornration
and, in doing so, consider r,vhether the other information is materially inconsistent with the financial
statements or our knor,vledge obtained during the course of our audit or otherwise appears to be materially
misstated.

If, based on the work we have performed, we conclude that there is a material misstatement of this other
information, lve are required to repoft that fact. We have nothi

Plot No.68, Okhla industrialArea, Phase-lll, New Delhi-1'10020
Tel: +91-11-4670 8888 E-mail: contact@sskmin.com

in this regard.

www.sskmin.com
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Management's Responsibility for the Financial Statements

The Company's Board of Directors is responsible for the matters stated in section 134(5) of the Act, with
respect to the preparation of these financial statements that give a true and fair view of the financial
position, financial performance and cash flows of the Company in accordance with the accounting
principles generally accepted in India, including the Accounting Standards specified under Section 133 of
the Act. This responsibility also includes maintenance of adequate accounting records in accordance with
the provisions of the Act for safeguarding the assets of the Company and for preventing and detecting
frauds and other irregularities; selection and application of appropriate accounting policies; making
judgments and estimates that are reasonable and prudent; and design, implementation and maintenance of
adequate internal financial controls, that were operating effectively for ensuring the accuracy and
completeness of the accounting records, relevant to the preparation and presentation of the financial
statements that give a true and fair view and are free from material misstatement, whether due to fraud or
erTor.

In preparing the financial statements, management is responsible for assessing the Company's ability to
continue as a going concern, disclosing, as applicable, matters related to going concern and using the going
concern basis of accounting unless management either intends to liquidate the Company or to cease
operations, or has no realistic alternative but to do so.

Those Board of Directors are also responsible for overseeing the Company's financial reporting process

Auditor's Responsibilities for the Audit of the Financial Statements

Our objectives are to obtain reasonable assurance about whether the financial statements as a whole are
free from material misstatement, whether due to fraud or error, and to issue an auditor's report that includes
our opinion. Reasonable assurance is a high level of assurance, but is not a guarantee that an audit
conducted in accordance with SAs will always detect a material misstatement when it exists.
Misstatements can arise from fraud or error and are considered rnaterial if, individually or in the aggregate,
they could reasonably be expected to influence the economic decisions of users taken on the basis of these
financial statements.

As part of an audit in accordauce with SAs, we exercise professionaljudgrnent and maintain professional
skepticism throughout the audit. We also:

Identif, and assess the risks of material misstatement of the financial statements, whether due to fraud
or error, design and perform audit procedures responsive to those risks, and obtain audit evidence that
is sufficient and appropriate to provide a basis for our opinion. The risk of not detecting a material
misstatement resulting from fraud is higher than for one resulting from error. as fraud mav involve
collusion, forgery, intentional cmissior.rs, misrepresentations, or the override of intcrnal control.

a

a Obtain att understanding of internal control relevant to the audit in order to design ar-rdit procedures
that are appropriate ilt the circurnstances. Under section 143(3Xi) of the Act, lve are also responsible
for expressing our opinion on rvhether the Company has adeqr.rate internal financial controls r,vith
reference to financial statements in place and the operating effectiveness of such controls.

Evaluate the appropriateness of accounting policies used and the reasonableness of accounting
estimates and related disclosures made by management.

a
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Conclude on the appropriateness of management's use of the going concern basis of accounting and,
based on the audit evidence obtained, whether a material uncertainty exists related to events or
conditions that may cast significant doubt on the Company's ability to continue as a going concern. if
we conclude that a material uncertainty exists, we are required to draw attention in our auditor's report
to the related disclosures in the financial statements or, if such disclosures are inadequate, to modifu
our opinion. Our conclusions are based on the audit evidence obtained up to the date of our auditor's
report. However, future events or conditions may cause the Company to cease to continue as a going
concern.

Evaluate the overall presentation, structure and content of the financial statements, including the
disclosures, and whether the financial statements represent the underlying transactions and events in
a manner that achieves fair presentation.

Materiality is the magnitude of misstatements in the financial statements that, individually or in aggregate,
makes it probable that the economic decisions of a reasonably knowledgeable user of the financial
statements may be influenced. We consider quantitative materiality and qualitative factors in (i) planning
the scope of our audit work and in evaluating the results of our work; and (ii) to evaluate the effect of any
identified misstatements in the financial statements.

We communicate with those charged with governance regarding, among other matters, the planned scope
and timing of the audit and significant audit findings, including any significant deficiencies in internal
controlthat we identiff during our audit.

We also provide those charged with governance with a statement that we have complied with relevant
ethical requirements regarding independence, and to communicate with them all relationships and other
matters that may reasonably be thought to bear on our independence, and where applicable, related
safeguards.

Report on Other Legal and Regulatory Requirements

As required by the Companies (Auditor's Report) Order, 2020 ("the Order") issued by the Central
Government of India in terms of Section 143(11) of the Act, we give in "Annexul'e A" a statement ou
the matters specified in paragraphs 3 and 4 of the Order.

2. As required by Section 143(3) of the Act, we report that:

(a) We have sought and obtained allthe information and explanations which to the best of our knowledge
and belief were necessary for the purpose of our audit;

(b) In our opiitioii propel' trot-rks ol accourrt as required by law have treerr kept by tlte Coutpauy so far as
appears from our examination of those books account except for the matters statecl in the paragraph
(i) vi below on rcporting under RLrle I l(g) of the Companies (Audit and Auditors) RLrles, 20 14.

(c) In our opinion, the financial statements dealt with by this Report are in agreement r.vitlr the books of
accoLlnt;

(d) In our opinion, the aforesaid financial statements comply with the Accounting Standards specified
under Section 133 of the Act;
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(e) On the basis of the written representations received from the directors as on March 31,2025 and taken
on record by the Board of Directors, none of the directors is disqualified as on March 31,2025 from
being appointed as a director in terms of Section 164 (2) of the Act.

(fl The modification relating to the maintenance of accounts and other matters therewith are as stated in
the paragraph 2(b) above on reporting under Section 143 (3) (b) ofthe Act and paragraph (i) vi. below
on reporting under Rule 11(g) of the Companies (Audit and Auditors) Rules,20l4

(g) With respect to the adequacy of the internal financial controls with reference to financial statements
of the Cornpany and the operating effectiveness of such controls, refer to our separate Report in
"Annexure B".

(h) The provisions of section 197 read with Schedule V to the Act are not applicable to the Company since
the Company is not a public company as defined under section2(71) of the Act. Accordingly, reporting
under section 197(16) is not applicable.

(i) With respect to the other matters to be included in the Auditor's Report in accordance with Rule 11 of
the Companies (Audit and Auditors) Rules, 2014,tn our opinion and to the best of our information
and according to the explanations given to us:

i. The Company has disclosed the impact of pending litigations as at March 31,2025 on its financial
position in its financial statements - Refer Note 31 to the financial statements.

The Cornpany did not have any long-term contracts including derivative contracts for which there
were any material foreseeable losses.

iii. There were no amounts which were required to be transferred to the Investor Education and
Protection Fund by the Cornpany.

IV (a) The Management has represented that, to the best of its knowledge and belief, no funds have
been advanced or loaned or invested (either from borrowed funds or share premium or any other
sources or kirrcl ol'[Lrrrcls) by tlre Corrrllarry io or irr arry ol.lrer' [)er.\on ol errLity, irrclrulirrg hrreigtr
entity ("Intermediaries"), r,vith the understanding, lvhether recorded in writing or otherwise, that
the Intermediary shall, whether, directly or indirectly lend or invest in other persons or entities
identified in any manner whatsoever by or on behalf of the Company ("Ultimate Beneficiaries")
or provide any guarantee, security or the like on behalf of the Ultimate Beneficiaries;

(b) The Managernent has represented, that, to the best of its knowledge and belief, no funds (which
are maferial either indirridrrnlhz orin fhc noorcoafe\ hnrre heen receirred hrr fhe (-nmnnnrz frnm anv
licrson or cniiiy, including ioreign eutity ("Funciing Parties"), with the understanding, r,vhether
recorded in r,vriting or othenvise, that the Cornpany shall, whetlrer, directly or indirectly, lend or
invest in otlter persons or entities identified in any lnanner whatsoever by or on behalf'of the
Funding Party ("Ultirnate Beneficiaries") or provide auy guarantee, security or the like on behalf'
of the Ultimate Beneficiaries;

(c) Based on the audit procedures that have been considered reasonable and appropriate in the
circumstances, nothing has come to our notice that has caused us to believe that the representations
under sub-clause (i) and (ii) of Rule 1l(e), as provided under (a) and (b) above, contain any
material misstatement
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v. The Company has not declared or paid any dividend during the year ended March 37,2025.

vi. Based on our examination which included test checks, the company has used an accounting
software for maintaining its books of accounts which doesn't have a feature of recording audit
trail (edit log) facility and the same has not operated throughout the year, for all transactions
duringthe year. Since there is no audittrail feature, the question of tempering & preserving
of audit trail doesn't arise.

For S S Kothari Mehta & Co. LLP
Chartered Accountants
Firm Reg. No. 000756N/ N500441

1

Jalaj Soni
Partner
Membership No.:
UDIN: ASS &

528799
ta99Bm'n nK3Ltr+

Place:New Delhi
Date: September 4,2025

NEW DELHI
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"Annexure A" to the Independent Auditor's Report
(As referred in paragraph 'Report on Other Legal and Regulatory Requirements 'of our report to the members
of Sotefin Bharat Private Limited (Formerly known as Sotefin Parking Private Limited) on the accounts
for the year ended March 31,2025)

i. In respect of the Company's Property, Plant and Equipment and intangible assets:

(a) (A) The Company has maintained proper records showing full particulars including
quantitative details and situation of Property, Plant and Equipment.

(B) The Company has maintained proper records showing full particulars of intangible
assets.

(b) The Company has a regular programme of physical verification of its Properly, Plant and
Equipment by which all Properly, Plant and Equipment are verified in a phased manner
over a period of three years. In accordance with this programme, a portion of the Property,
Plant and Equipment has been physically verified by the management during the year and
no material discrepancies were noticed on such verification.

(c) According to the information and explanations given to us and on the basis of our
examination of the records of the Company, the title deeds of the immovable properties
(Other than properties where the Company is the lessee and the lease agreement are duly
executed in favour of the lessee) are held in the name of the Company.

(d) The Company has not revalued any of its Property, Plant and Equipment and intangible
assets during the year.

(e) Based on the information and explanations furnished to us, no proceedings have been
initiated during the year or are pending against the Company as at March 31,2025 for
holding any benami property under the Benami Transactions (Prohibition) Act, 1988 (45
of 1988) and rules made thereunder and accordingly no disclosure is required in the
Company's financial statements.

(a) The inventory has been physically verified by the managernent at reasonable interval during
the year. In our opinion, the frequency of verification is reasonable. In respect of inventory lying
with third parties, these have substantially been confirmed by thern. The discrepancies noticed
on such physical verification of inventory as compared to book records were not 100% or more
in aggregate for each class of inventory.
(b) During the year, the Company has been sanctioned working capital limits in excess of Rs. 5
crore, in aggregate, from banks on the basis of secLrrity of eLrrrent assets. The Company has filed
quarterly returns or statements with such banks, which are in agreement with the books of
accounts other than those as set out below:

ll.
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Note - Above differences are on account ofperiod ended book closure accounting entries being recorded
subsequent to submission of statements to the bank, which is prepared on the basis of provisional financial
information {Refer note 8 (vii) of financial statements}

In our opinion and according to the information and explanations given to us, the Company has
provided loan during the year.

(a)The details of loans provided by the Company are as follows

Nature of securities Guarantees Securitv Loans

Advances in
nature of
loans

Aggregate amount
grantedl prov ided during
the year
- Subsidiaries
'- Joint Ventures
'- Associates
'- Others 9.30 lakhs

9.30 lakhs

Balance outstanding as at
balance sheet date irr
respect ofabove cases
'- Subsidiaries
'- Joint Ventures
'- Associates
'- Others

Quarter
Ended

Name of
bank

Particular of
Securities
Provided

Amount as
reported in the
quarterly
return/
statement(in
lakhs)

Amount as per
books of
account (in
lakhs)

Amount of
difference (in
lakhs)
Excess/(Short)

Reason for
material
discrepancies

Jun-24 Axis
Bank Sundry Debtors 1,694.74 1,637.00 57.74

Refer Note
below

Sep-24

ICICI
Bank

Sundry Debtors 2.615.19 2.686.21 -71.02

Dec-24 Sundry Debtors 1.842.94 1.808.96 33.98

Mar-25

Sundry
Creditors 2.176.12 2.tt7.t9 58.94

Sundry Debtors 4.40r.40 5.447.97 - 1.046.57

NEW
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(b) In our opinion, the terms and conditions of the aforesaid loan are not prejudicial to the interest
of the Company.

(c)The repayment schedule was stipulated. The entire loan amount was repaid after the year-end
on 20 August2025.

(d)There are no loans overdue for more than 90 days as at 3l March 2025.

(e)The Company has not renewed or extended any loans or advances in the nature of loans, nor
has it granted fresh loans to settle the existing dues of the same party.

(f)The Company has not granted loans or advances in the nature of loans either repayable on
demand or without specifring any terms or period of repayment.

In our opinion and according to the information and explanations given to us, the Company has
complied with the provisions of Section 185 and 186 of the Act in respect of loans and Investment
made, guarantees provided by the Company, as applicable.

In our opinion and according to the information and explanations given to us, the Company has not
accepted any deposits from public and consequently, the directives issued by the Reserve Bank of
India and the provisions of Sections 73 to 76 or any other provision of the Companies Act and the
rules framed there under are not applicable to the Company. Accordingly, the provisions of clause
3 (v) of the Order is not applicable to the Company.

The maintenance of cost records has not been specified by the Central Government under sub- section
(1) of section 148 of The Companies Act,20l3 for the business activities carried out by the Company.
Hence, reporting under clause 3 (vi) of the Order is not applicable to the Company.

(a) According to the information and explanations given to us and on the basis of our examinations
of the Books of Account, undisputed Statutory dues, including Goods and Services Tax, provident
fund, employees' state insurance, income tax, sales tax, service tax, duty of customs, duty of excise,
value added tax, cess and any other material statutory dues applicable to the Company have been
regularly deposited with the appropriate authorities.

There were no undisputed amounts outstanding in respect of Goods and Services Tax, provident
fund, employees' state insurance, income tax, sales tax, service tax, duty of customs, duty of excise,
valne added tax, cess and other material statutory dues in arrears as at March 31,2025 for a period
of more than six months from the date they became payable

/h\ A nnnrr{ino tn fhp rcnnr.lc onrl infnrnof inn o-.1 o-^lo-oti^-o -i.ro- fn rro fhora ara nn .lrtoo i-
!v sr, Lr ivr !

respect of statutory dues referred to in vii (a) above which have not been deposited on account of
any dispute except as given below :-

Name
Statue

of Nature of I)ues Period
(F.Y.) to
which the
amount
relates

Amount
demanded
(Excluding
Interest &
Penalty)
(Rs.In lakhs)

Amount Paid
(Rs. in lakhs)

Forum where
dispute is pending

Goods and
Service Tax

Goods and Service
Tax

2020-21 20.21 t3.37 GST officer
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According to the information and explanations given to us and the records of the Company
examined by us, there are no transactions in the books of account that has been surrendered or
disclosed as income during the year in the tax assessments under the Income Tax Act, 1961, that
has not been recorded in the books ofaccount.

a) According to the information and explanation given to us, and the procedure performed by us,
the Company has not defaulted in repayment of loans or other bonowing or in payment of interest
thereon to any lender.

b) The Company has not been declared wilful defaulter by any bank or financial institution or
government or any government authority.

c) According to the information and explanation given to us, and the procedure performed by us,
the term loans have been applied, on an overall basis, for the purposes for which they were
obtained.

d) According to the information and explanation given to us, and the procedure performed by us,
and on overall examination of the financial statements of the Company, we report that the funds
raised on short term basis are not utilised for long term purposes.

e) According to the information and explanation given to us, and the procedure performed by us,
and on overall examination of the financial statements of the Company, we report that the
Company has not taken any funds from any entity or person on account of or to meet the
obligations of its subsidiary.

f) According to the information and explanations given to us and procedures perforrned by us, we
report that the Company has not raised loans during the year on the pledge of securities held in
its subsidiary.

(a) According to the information and explanations given to us, the Company has not raised moneys
by way of initial public offer or further public offer (including debt instruments) during the year.
Hence, the requirement to report on clause (x)(a) of the order is not applicable to the Company.

(b) According to the information and explanations given to us and based on our examination of
the records of the Company, the Company has not made any preferential allotment or private
placement of sha.res or f'.r!11, or partll, conve''fible dqt'qrlfrlrqs drrrino fhe vear Hence. the
requirement to report on clanse (x)(b) of the order is not applicable to the Cornpany.

(a) During the course of our examination of the books and records of the Cornpany carried out in
accordance rvith the generally accepted auditing practices in India, we have neither come across
any instance of fraud by the Company or on the Company being noticed or reported during the
year, nor have we been informed of such case by the management.

(b) According to the information and explanations given to us, no report under sub-section ( 12) of
section 143 of the Companies Act,2013 has been filed in Form ADT-4 as prescribed under Rule
l3 of Companies (Audit and Auditors) Rules,2014 with the Central Government, during the year

NEW

and upto the date of this repoft.
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(c) As represented to us by the management, there are no whistle-blower complaints received by
the Company during the year.

In our opinion and according to the information and explanations given to us, the Company is not
a Nidhi Company. Therefore, the provisions of clause 3 (xii) of the Order is not applicable to the
Company.

According to the information and explanations given to us and based on examination of records
of the Company, transactions with the related parties are in compliance with section 188 of the
Act, where applicable and the details of such transactions have been disclosed in the financial
statements as required by the applicable accounting standards. The provisions of Section 177 of
the Act are not applicable to the company and hence not commented upon.

In our opinion and according to the information and explanations given to us, Internal audit is not
applicable on the company. Therefore, the provisions of clause 3 (xiv) of the Order is not
applicable to the Company.

According to the information and explanations given to us and based on examination of records,
the Company has not entered into any non-cash transactions with directors or persons connected
with him. Accordingly, the provisions of clause 3 (xv) of the Order is not applicable to the
Company.

(a) The Company is not required to be registered under Section 45-IA of the Reserve Bank of
India Act, 1934. Accordingly, paragraph 3(xvi)(a), (b) & (c) of the Order are not applicable.

(b) According to the information and explanations given to us and based on our examination of
the records of the Company, the company has not conducted any Non-Banking Financial or
Housing Finance activities without a valid Certificate of Registration (COR) from the Reserve
Bank of India as perthe Reserve Bank of India Act, 1934. Accordingly, this clause of the
Order is not applicable.

(c) In our opinion and according to the information and explanations given to us, the Company is
not a Core Investment Company. Accordingly, this clause 3 (xvi)(c) of the Order is not
applicable.

(d) In our opinion and according to the information and explanations given to us, there ls no core
investment company within the uroup (as ciefineci in the Lore investment Companies
(Reserve Bank) Directions, 2016) and accordingly reporting under clause 3(xviXd) of the
C)rder is not applicable.

According to the information and explanations given to us and based on our examination of the
records of the Company, the Company has not incurred cash losses in the curent and in the
immediately preceding financial year.

There has been resignation of the statutory auditor during the year and as informed, there have been
no issues, objections or concerns raised by the outgoing auditor.

c/)
a* *
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On the basis of the financial ratios disclosed in note no.37, ageing and expected dates of realisation
of financial assets and payment of financial liabilities, other information accompanying the
financial statements and our knowledge of the Board of Directors and Management plans and based
on our examination of the evidence supporting the assumptions, nothing has come to our attention,
which causes us to believe that any material uncertainty exists as on the date of the audit report
indicating that Company is not capable of meeting its liabilities existing at the date of balance sheet
as and when they fall due within a period of one year from the balance sheet date. We, however,
state that this is not an assurance as to the future viability of the Company. We further state that
our reporting is based on the facts up to the date of the audit report and we neither give any
guarantee nor any assurance that all liabilities falling due within a period of one year from the
balance sheet date, will get discharged by the Company as and when they fall due.

(a) In respect ofother than ongoing projects, there are no unspent amounts that are required to be
transferred to a Fund specified in Schedule VII to the Companies Act, 2013 in compliance with
second proviso to sub-section (5) of section 135 of the said Act. Accordingly, reporting under
clause 3(xx)(a) of the Order is not applicable for the year.

(b) According to the information and explanation provided to us, the Company has not undertaken
any ongoing project during the year. Accordingly, reporting under clause 3(xxXb) of the Order is
not applicable for the year

For S S Kothari Mehta & Co.LLP
Chartered Accountants
Firm Reg. No. 000756NN500441

Jalaj Soni
Partner
Membership No.: 5287
UDIN: a55A 8+9
Place:New Delhi
Date: September 4,2025
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"Annexure B" to the Independent Auditor's Report
(Referred to in paragraph 2(0 under 'Report on Other Legal and Regulatory Requirements' section of our
report to the Members of Sotefin Bharat Private Limited (Formerly known as Sotefin Parking Private
Limited) of even date)

Report on the Internal Financial Controls with Reference to Financials Statements Clause (i) of Sub-
section 3 of Section 143 of the Companies Act, 2013 ('othe Act")
We have audited the internal financial controls with reference to financial statements of Sotefin Bharat
Private Limited (Formerly known as Sotefin Parking Private Limited) ("the Company") as of March
31,2025 in conjunction with our audit of the financial statements of the Company for the year ended on
that date.

Management's Responsibility for Internal Financial Controls

The Company's Management & Board of Directors of the Company is responsible for establishing and
maintaining intemal financial controls based on the internal control with reference to financial statements
criteria established by the Company considering the essential components of internal control stated in the
Guidance Note on Audit of Internal Financial Controls over Financial Reporting issued by the Institute of
Chartered Accountants of India. These responsibilities include the design, implementation and
maintenance of adequate internal financial controls that were operating effectively for ensuring the orderly
and efficient conduct of its business, including adherence to respective Company's policies, the
safeguarding ofits assets, the prevention and detection offrauds and errors, the accuracy and completeness
of the accounting records, and the timely preparation of reliable financial information, as required under
the Act.

Auditor's Responsibility
Our responsibility is to express an opinion on the internal financial controls with reference to financial
statements of the Company based on our audit. We conducted our audit in accordance with the Guidance
Note on Audit of Internal Financial Controls Over Financial Reporting (the "Guidance Note") issued by
the Institute of Chartered Accountants of India and the Standards on Auditing prescribed under Section
143(10) of the Act, to the extent applicable to an audit of internal financial controls. Those Standards and
the Guidance Note require that we comply with ethical requirements and plan and perform the audit to
obtain reasonable assurance about whether adequate internal financial controls with reference to financial
statements was established and maintained and if such controls operated effectively in all material respects.

Our audit involves performing procedures to obtain audit evidence about the adequacy of the intemal
financiai corri.rois sysiern wiih reiererrce to firrancial s|aleureuis arrd iheir uperaiirrg eflcuiivsrress. Our autiit
of internalfinancial controls with reference to financial statements included obtaining an understanding of
internal financial controls with reference to financial statements. assessing the risk that a material
weakness exists, and testing and evaluating the design and operating effectiveness of internal control based
on the assessed risk. The procedures selected depend on the auditor's judgment, including the assessment
of the risks of material misstatement of the financial statements, whether due to fraud or error.

We believe that the audit evidence we have obtained, is sufficient and appropriate to provide a basis for
our audit opinion on the internal financial controls system with reference to financial statements of the

a/)
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Meaning of Internal Financial Controls with reference to financial statements

A Company's internal financial control with reference to financial statements is a process designed to
provide reasonable assurance regarding the reliability of financial reporting and the preparation of
financial statements for external purposes in accordance with generally accepted accounting principles. A
Company's internal financial control with reference to financial statements includes those policies and
procedures that (l) pertain to the maintenance of records that, in reasonable detail, accurately and fairly
reflect the transactions and dispositions of the assets of the Company; (2) provide reasonable assurance
that transactions are recorded as necessary to permit preparation of financial statements in accordance with
generally accepted accounting principles, and that receipts and expenditures of the Company are being
made only in accordance with authorizations of management and directors of the Company; and (3)
provide reasonable assurance regarding prevention or timely detection of unauthorized acquisition, use, or
disposition of the Company's assets that could have a material effect on the financial statements.

Inherent Limitations of Internal Financial Controls with reference to financial statements

Because of the inherent limitations of internal financial controls with reference to financial statements,
including the possibility of collusion or improper management override of controls, material misstatements
due to effor or fraud may occur and not be detected. Also, projections of any evaluation of the internal
financial controls with reference to financial statements to future periods are subject to the risk that the
internal financial control with reference to financial statements may become inadequate because of
changes in conditions, or that the degree of compliance with the policies or procedures may deteriorate.

Opinion
In our opinion, to the best of our information and according to the explanations given to us, the Company
has, in all material respects, an adequate internal financial controls system with reference to financial
statements and such internal financial controls with reference to financial statements were operating
effectively as at March 31,2025, based on the internal control with reference to financial statements
criteria established by the Company considering the essential components of internal control stated in the
Guidance Note on Audit of Internal Financial Controls Over Financial Reporting issued by the Institute of
Chartered Accountants of India

For S S Kothari Mehta & Co. LLP
Chartered Accountants
Firm Res. No. 000756Nn{50044 1./-\ -

Jalaj Soni
Partner
Membershio No.: 528799
UDrN: &55 a 8?(.j8
Place: New Delhi
Date: September 4,2025
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Prrtlculrrs Note No. As on March 31, 2025 As on March 31,2024
Equity And Lirbllitier

(1) Shareholderr'Funds
(a) Share Capital
(b) Resewes and Surplus

(2) Non-ctrrentLiabilitles
(a) Long-term Borrowitrgs
(b) Long-term hovisions

(3) CurrentLiabilitier
(a) Short-term Bonowings
(b) Trade Payables

Total Outstanding dues of Micro and Small Enterprises
TotEl Outstandiry ducs ofCreditors othor than Mioro and Small Enterprises

(e) Other Current Liabilities
(d) Short-term Provisions

Total

Assets
(l) Non-current Assets

(a) Property, Plant & Equipment
(i) Tangible Assets
(ii) Capital Work in hogress
(iii) lntangible Assets

O) Deferred Tax Assets (Net)
(c) l,ong-term Loans and Advances

(2) CurrentAsrets
(a) Inventorios
i"b) Trade Receivables
(c) Short-term Loans and Advances
(d) Cash and Bank Balances
(e) Othoc Current Assets

Total

3
4

I
6

1
8

9
10

l1
t2
l3
t4
l5

t6
t7
t8
19
20

tts.7t
5-536.68

99.89
2,583.36

5,652.39

3 r2.05
43.6t

2,683.25

90.75
53.0',1

355.66

903.65

124.40
1,992.79

558.32
286.31

143.E2

1,786.88

23't.71
16a ta
373.89
101.25

3,&5.47 3,291,99

9,873.52 6,tr9.06

1,294,88
I,I54.09

12.95
5.32

99.53

975.56
215.00

r.30
9.29
7.53

2,566.77

854.53
5,613.38

9.33
160.83
668.68

1,20E.6E

515.38
3,679.55

203.27
512.18

7,3{'6.75 4,910.38

9,8?3.52 6,1 19.06

Sot¤fln BhNrat Pr.ivNto Limited
(f'ormerly known ar Sotefln Parking Prlvate Limited)
Balance Sheet rs at March 31, 2025
cIN - U2922 lWB201 2PTC175825
Allanwants ate h lasexcept uhenbe statcil

Summary of Slgni{Ic8nt accounting policies
The accompanying noter are an integral part of thc financial statemelts
As per our report even drts rttsched

S S Kothari Mehta & Co, LLP
Chartered Accountants
Fimfs Registration Number 000756N4{500441

Jalaj Soni
Partner
Membership Number 528799
Placse: New ifelhi
l)ate; September 4, 2025

For rnd on behalf of Sotefln Bharat Private Limited (Formerly klown
as Sotefin Parking Private Limited)

)

n
L

Arup Kumar Choudhuri
Managing Director
DIN - 03{91600
Place: Kolkata
Date: September 4. 2025

S¤ngupta
ChiefIinancial Officer
Placse; Kolkata
Dater Septemb¤r "1, 2025

Ghosh
Executive Director
DlN - 03.1915J1
Place: Kolkara
Date: September.l, 2025

Companv Seoreta*
Mcmberstup Numbs A6942 I
Placse: Kolkata
Date: September 4,2025

NEW DELHI



Sotefin Bharat Private Limited
(Formerly known as Sotefin Parking Private Limited)
Statement of Prolit and Loss for the year ended March 3l,2OZs
crN - u2922rWB20l2PTCl7s82s
AII amoun8 are ln locs except othenttse stated

Summary of Significant accounting policies
The accompanying notes are an integral part of the financial statements
As per our leporteven date attached

S S Kothari Mehta & Co. LLP
Chartered Accountants
l-irm's Number 0007

For and on behalf of Sotefin Bharat Private Limited (Formerly
known as Sotefin Parking Private Limited)

2

?

Jalaj Soni
Partner
Membership Number 528?1)9
Placse: New Delhr
Date: Septemberl, 2025

Kumar Choudhuri
N{anaging Director
DIN - 03491600
Place: Kolkata
Date: September 1,2025

Jaya Sengupta
Chief Financial Oflicer
Place; Kolkata
Date: September,l^ 2025

L*ffi
Executive Director
DIN - 03491551
Place: Kolkata
Date: September 4,2025

/),
!>iq.Q,1'
Biswajit Dae---)
Company Secretan,
N{embership Number A69421
Place: Kolkata
Date: Seplember 4, 2()25

Particulars Note No. For the year ended
March 31,2025

For the year ended March 31,
2024

Income
I. Revenue from Operafions

Other Income
Total Revenue

III. Expenses
Cost of Material Consumed
Employee Benefits Expense
Finance Costs
Depreciation and Amortisation
Other Expenses
Total Expenses

IV. ProfitBeforeTax
V. Tax Expense :

l) CurrentTax
2) Defened Tax Credit / (Charge)
3) Short I (Excess) Provision ofTax in respect ofearlier year

VI. Prolit I ( Loss ) After Tar

Basic & Diluted Eamings per Equity Share of
Rs. 10/- each

2t
22

23
24
25

26

z7

9,377.63
170.27

5,628.32
40.30

9F47.92 5,668.62

2,747.03
568.82
200.10
,( oo

4,244.28

2,956.63
542.98
144.50
44.t7

1.322.tt
7,786.22 5.01039

1,761.70

(s2e.el)
(3.e7)

658.23

(1e4.82)
2.19

(7.17\
(s33.8e) (lee.80)

1227l1 458.43

9.68 3.65
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Pardculan I.or th¤ y¤a etrd¤d
Merh 3t- 2O2(

A. Tu
For Nm Culr, Non Opendng ltems
and Arnocistim

Interesl on Fixed Depcit
Balm WritrsnBack
Tmsfef,Ed to fact6y building
Ifferest m Seurfty Deposit
ks Equalistion Rme

D¤bls
l{riuen otr

Costs

Prsfit Bcfore Adjutnent for Wor{6rg Cspltrl ChrngB
Adjustrent For WorHng Crptrd Cllngs
Duanc(Inro) Tmde Rmivabls
De.{essd0n6¤ase) Inv¤dory
Drease(lnro) otha Cuna! Asst6

in T.ad¤ Payablos
Llros¤(D¤s¤s) in lDag.tsm Provisidrs

in Short-&f, n Provisiora
OthqCuffit Liabiliti6

Genented Fnm Opcrrdon
Income tax paid

Flow From Opemtlng Acdvlde (A)

B. Csh Flow Fmm Investtrg Acdvt{e
Irtrer¤$ lnm

ofProperty, Plu[ & Equipmal
Additimlo Cspital Wuk inprogro andCapitat advoce givm

of ldegible Assets
Given
D¤pGifs nslued

Carh Flor Fmm lnvcrh* Acdtdd.r (B)

c, tlor Fror Slmnctng Actvlftr
Issuo of Shm Capital & Sroiiic Premim Rmived
FircCdspaid
Proceeds Ing.tcnu Bofiowitts

Leg-istm BoFowings
of short 1m borcqiDgs (N¤t)

Csh t'lm FIw Flnaactrg Acdvlde (C)

trnud(Ilaw) tn Cah and Carh Equlv8lent
Cah & Cch Equlvsl¤rt a ra Jlst Msrch 2ln5

satld

1,761.70

23.99
(13.e6)
(88.41)
(40 64)

(0. r0)
t.32

40.02
5.32

200. t0
I,S9t.34

(1,979.r6)
(33e.14)
(153.08)

1.r75.63
(e.46)
0.90 l

1$.0s ]

no.tl
(345.75\

420.05
(271.24')

424.1t t48.81

10,68
(342.88)
{990.46)

(12.78)
(e.33)
48.79

8.71
(38.91)

(r59.48)
(0.50)

i26.00)
/t -295.98) (216.18

r,74f.Ar
(200.10)
357.n

(130.!2)
r889.61

(r,r4.50)
90.0t)

(r08.78)
t9l.l2

&'t7.98 27.8,4

6.35
9.E3
3.48

(3e.53)
3.48

43.00

(Formerlyhrom rs golafn P|rlfug hvst. Llmlted)
C$h Flow S:tetffnnt for the yeu ¤nd¤d Mrrch 31, 2025
ctN - u2922lWB20l2PTCt75S5
AII moan* pe ia larr's ucqt ortm*e stded

Notes to the Col trlm Strtsmnl
l. Carh & Cch Equivalmt rspresats

a) Cash m Hmd
b) Baluce Wilh Bank

'Ihc accompmying mte {re m lntegral !6rt of the ffnuclal ststementr
As IEr our report wen dote atlsched

S S Korhrd llchrs & Co. LLP
Chartered .\ltountsts
Fim's Rsgistrstim Number 000756N/N500441
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SOTETIN BHARAT PRIVATE LJMITED.

Notes to Financial Statenrenr for the year ended March 3lst. 2025

l. General Information
The companl'rvas incorporated on March rdth, 2012. as a prir-ate Limited companl

2. Summary of Significant Accounting policies

A. Basis of Accounting
The Financial Statements.have been prepared under the historical cost convention based on assumptionsof going concem, in consistency wittr the generalll, accepted accounting principles tCCpj in India o1 anaccrual basis with the Accounting Standards notified under Companiij 6aciountsy nutes 2014 aud therelevant provisions of the Companies Act. 2013

The accounting policies adopted in the preparation of the financial statements are consistent rvith thosefolloned in the previous year.

B. Use of Estimates

The preparation of financial statements in conformiS' with Generally Accepted Accounting principles
(GAAP) requires management to make judgements, eitimates and assumptions that affect the applicationof accounting policies and reported amounti of assets, liabilities, income,'and expens¤s *a tt. disclosureof contingent liabilities on the date of the financial statements. Actual resutts could differ frorn thoseestimates. Estimates and underlying assumprions are revierved on an ongoing basis. An),. revision toaccounting estimates is recognised prospectiveh. in current and frrture periodi.

C. Current & Non-current Classification
All assets and liabilities are classified into curent and non-current.

Assets:

An asset is classified as current uhen it satisfies an}. of the follog.ing criteria:
a) It is expected to be realised in. or is inrended for sale or consunption in. &e Companr.,s nomraloperating c}'cle:

b) It is held primarilr- for the pwpose of being haded:

c) lt ls expected to be renliseri s'ithin l2 months after the reporting date: or
d).It is cash or cash equivalent unless it is restricted from being exchanged or used ro settle a liabiliti forat least l2 months after the reporting date

Cttrrent assets include the cunent portion of non-current financial assets Ail other assets are classified asllon-currerlt

Liabilities:
A liabilirr. is classified as cuffent n.hen it satisfies an1-of the lblloning criteria.

NEWDFTII

a) It is expected to be settled Companr''s nonrral operating cr'cle:



b) It is held primaril.v for the purpose of being traded;

c) It is due to be settled rvithin 12 months after the reporting date

All other Liabilities are classified as Non-current

D. Revenue Recognition
(i) Revenue tou'ards satisfaction of a Performance obligation is measured at the amount of transaction
price allocated to that Performance Obligation. Amount disclosed are net of Goods and Senices Tax
(GST) and taxes collected on behalf of the third parties. Revenue is recognized to the estent that it is
probable that the economic benefits rvill florv to the Companl and Revenue can be reliabll'measured.
(ii) Export incentive in the nature of du[' draw back or "Duqv Entitlement Pass Book" under "Du6'
Exemption Scheme" is accounted for in the ,r.'ear of Export.
(iii) Interest income is .ecognized on a time proportion basis taking into account the amount outstanding
and the interest rate applicable.

E. Property Plant & Equipment

(a) Property Plant & Equipment
(i) Properry*, Plant and Equipment are carried at cost of acquisition or construction cost less accumulated
depreciation. Costs include all espenses incuned to bring the asset to its present location and condition.

(ii) The comparry has adopted the revaluation model for its Land and Buildings u'hich is their fair value at
the date of revaluation, less anv subsequent accumulated depreciation and impairment losses.

{iii) Expenditure during constuction period incurred on the projects under implementation are treated as
Pre- operative Expenses pending allocation to the assets, and are included under "Capital Work in
!tog."l!-, These expenses are apportioned to fixed assets on conmencement of cornmercial production.
Capitai Work in Progress is stated at the amount incurred up to the date of Balance Sheet.

(b) Intangible Assets

Intangible Assets that are aequircd b1' the Companl' and have finite useful lives are measured ar cost less
accumulated amortization

(c) Depreciation

(i) Depreciation on PPE is prolided on Written Doun Value lvlethod based upon the useftrl life of the
resp¤ctive PPE in accordance rvith Schedule II part C of the Companies Act. 2dl3 in such a nranner that
after the lapse of prescribed useful Iife the residual lalue is 5%of the original cost. Honever. in cases
$tere the residual value is less than 5%of their original cost, the residLral value is talien at actual basis.

F. irrvcniorics

Stock of material is vahred at the lou"er of cost or net realizable value alier provirline auv other losses.
*here considered necessan' Cost ls detennined on First-ln-Frrst-out basis.

G. Investrnents
Long'temr inresbnents are stated at cost of acquisition. Diminution il vatue of such long-tenn
iuvestulents is not prorided for except rvhere determined to be of permanent nalure. Current ntvestments
are stated at lorr er of cost or fuir market r-alue .

p,
?.9,
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H. Foreign Currency Transactions
Foreign Currenc.v transactions are recorded at the rates of eschange prevailing on the date of transaction.

I Employee Benefits
(i) Defined Contribution Plans:

A Defined Contribution Plan is a Post- Emplotment plan rurder u'hich an entit"!.pa1.s fixed conrribution
and rtill hale no legal or constructire obligaiion to pa1; an1, filrther arnount

Companr"s contribution to thc Providcnt Fmd. pension undcr Employees' Pension Scheme. 1995 etc. are
recognised during the 1.ear in rvhich the related senice is rendered.

(ii) Defined Bene{it Plans:

Gratuil': The. fqnlgrl' provides for gratuit-v. a defined benefit plan, cor,ering eligible emplol,ees in
accordance n'ith the Pal,ment of &aruiqv Act 1972. The companr,* tiauitilu is iruaiiall.v determined at
the end of the.vear.

Leave Encashment; The Company provides for Lear,e Encashment. a defined beneflt plan, colering
eligtble emplovees in accordance rvith the applicable Labour La*'s. The company's liabiliq, is actuariallf
determined at the end of the year.

J. Cash and Cash Equivalent
Cash and cash equivalents for the purpose of cash flou. statement comprise cash at bank and in hand and
short-term invesbnents rvith an original maturiq' of three months or less.

K. Cash Flow Statement

Cash Florvs are reported using the indirect method u'hereby profit{loss) before extra-ordinary items and
tax is adjusted for the effects of transactions of non-cash natue. The cash florv from operating, investing
and financing actif ities of the Company are segregated based on the available information,

L. Earnings per Share (EPS)

Basic- eaminqs per share are calculoted b1' dividing the net profit for the vear attributable to equitr
shareholders b1' the weighted avcrage number of E{uitr Shares outstanding dil"g td p.rioa Foi tlre
prrpose of calculating diluted eamings per share, the net profit of the 1'ear attributable to equiq.
shareholders and ths weighted average number of Equitl' Shares outstanding during the period are
adjusted for the effects ofall dilutive potential equitv shares.
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(Fom¤rly hosm sr Sotefn ParHng Prtvate Llnrlhd)
Noaer 0o finrndd stahments for the ytr dded March 31, 2025
cIN - U2921W82012PTCI75a25
AA omounrs oe in lnd dcqt othqvbe stded

3 Shll¤crpltrl

Pu{cdm
As on Msch

31,2425
AS On lllffin

31,2024

Aulholked
12,00,000 (10,00,000) Equity Shres ofRs. l0/- each

Istr¤d, Suhsrlbed md Prld-up
I1,57,124 (9.98,940) Equity Sharw of Rs. 10/- ach tully Paid up

120 00 100.00

n5-71 99.89

115.?t 9!x

t) Rlght pref¤rems md rot rctloru atanch¤d to eqqlty !h8B
The Cmpmy has a singl¤ class of equity shm. Axrdingly, all equity shrrs nnk qually with mgards to dividmds md slwe rhe Cmpmy'r roidual *ssets. The equity shues
m mritled to reivo dividmd r dwlucd *om time lo titoe subject to psyment of dividend to preffrace shseftoldc if my. An eq[ity shftholdarprffit in penon shall tave
rigbt to me vote ir cas¤ of voling by show of haod On winding up of tl6 Cmpey, the hot&rs of equity shm wilt be entitled to reeive tha residual wts of thc Company in
amcdme with Articl* of Assmiation ofihe Company (u my be hr force),

b) Reconcllladon ofthe sham otr&hndlng at the beghntng and at thc end ofthe repoiltng pedod

PudculsE !-or the y6r ended Milrh lt,
zAtS

for tnc y6r elrl¤d Malttr .rI,
2024

Nc ofShrrs
held

Amount
pald up

No ofShrno
held

Amomi
!trld up

Opening Balme
Add : Shffi ised duing the priod
Clqing Balmce

9.9&940 99.89 9.98.940 99.69
1,5E,184 15.82

It.57.t21 tl5-7t 9-98-tCtl 19.E9

c) Dctsllsof thr,eholdenholdlngnmret&rn5o/o sharoln&eConprny

Pil{lculiB

for the ym ordcd Marth 31,
2025

For tlr¤ yu ¤tlded Msnh 31,
2024

NG o/o holdhr No 7o holdlnr

F4dty shan of R* f{V- erch ftlly pafd
Pis Intcmtional Privsto Limited
Proviron T*lnrologr S.A"
Jignorh Pravlrhandra Su$avi
Nipa Jainodra Shah
Hem Rakah Shah
Sejal Dipm Shah
Ami ToJa Shah

2,49,735
\49,735
2,49,735

62,433
62,434
62,434
62,434

2t.5VA
2l.Sto/a
2l.58Vo
5.4$o/o
s,404,6

5.40o/o
5.A0c/o

2,49,735
2,49,735
2.49,735

62,433
62,434
62,434
62,434

25.00o/o
25.Q0o/o

25.00o/o
6.25o/o
6-250,6

6.25o/o
6.25o/o

d) I'¤tsllr of shm hcld by promoten sa the end of th¤ ym

4 Rtrn¤..l,nd Srrplu,

Pardculan
As on March Jl. 2025 .\r on Illanh 31.202.1

"/o chugc dulng ltre
FY 202+25

o/o chmge dutng ttle
['v tot3-tc

Nd. %o holdlns flos '/o noldtm N6 r,/o hol.llnt Ne "/o nokllns

B4ulE shsm o{Rs. l0/- eaci ftrlly pald
Pis Intmtimal Privale Limiied
Prcviron Technologr S,A

2,49,735
2.49,735

21.58o/o
21.580,,0

2,49,735
2,19,735

25.00d/o
25.00r/o

-3.429to
-3.429i

latutMB
As on Marchjr, ^iuzs

Ar on Msrh
Jt, tvz4

I

Reralmtlon Rese n rs
Opning llalece
.{dd: Addition during the lw
l*s: Deprcciation chuged .luring rhc yur on
Revalued -{sets

Securide Premim Rapryes
0pening Elalme
Add: .{dditiou during $c yw

Ststemeni of Profit md Los Account
Opming !3aluct
NEr Profil I ([rss) r *rc Yoar

Total Rerenes md Surplus

587. l0
11.1'7

16 47

594.56

1.46
588.{0

2J0.05
l-724.21

587.10

250,0s

1yr1.26

1,716.21
1,221.81

250.05

r,287.78
458.43

2914.02 t;,16.2t

5536.58 2,54J.36
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Sotefin Bharet Prlvetc Llmited
(f,'ormerly lnown as Sotelln Parldng Prlv.te Llmihd)
Noteg l,o flnanclsl statsnonb for the yerr ended Mrrch 31, 2025
cIN - tn922rWB2012F rC1?5825
.4lI axuunb are ia lax 6cept olhetwise stated

5 Long-TermBorrowings

Prrticulcrs
As on March

31,2025
As on Mrrch

3t,2024

Seurcd loar
Unsecured Loan

Less : Current Maturities oflorg Term Borrowings

344.55
49.36

(81.86)

12.01
94.22

(75.48)

312.05 90.75

On 28lh July 2023, fte compary has takm vohicle lom frm Bank of tndia of INR 1 5.00 lm at ths mle of 9.05% p.aThe amount outstanding wd* this facility is 3 l March
2025: INR 10.95 laa(31.03.2024 is r1.83 lacs)
An3rd Juu'try 2022, rhe smpay hs rtke vehiclo bm Aon Puqiab Nstiorul Brnk of IltR 20.00 186 at &e nte o19.35o/o p,a'l'he munl ostst ndinguder thjs feility is 3l
Mmh 2025: INR 8.63 lffi(31.03.2024 is 13.J8 lm)
Vehiclo loans ue secured against llrc rcspetive vehicles.

On March 18,2025,6e Compmy availed a tm loan tsn ICICI Bank of INR 52.87 lm for Equipmart Fimcing at u hleres[ mte of 9.15olo p.a The mout outrteding
uder thir facitity is 3l Muc-h 2025; INR 52.87 las(31.03.2024 is 0 lacs)
On Marc$ 20, 2025, ItE Comrymy avriled uo&ct lem loan froni ICICI Bsrk of INR 16-08 lrc for Equipmart finrncin& at an interHt rale of 9.l'olo p.a The mout
outsandingun&r&is faoility is 3l Mrch 2025: INR 16.08las(31.03.2024 is 0 lac:)
Equipmernt Fimcing re seumd against the mrpecnive Machinecie.

On Mry 29, 2024 tho Compuy availed a ll(ru lom frm HDFC Bsrk Ltd. of INR 24J.00 16 fq ac{uiring N* 0frc6 Brildin& at an intqKt rale of 9.20ol0 p,a ild wd
s¤corcd sgainstthe Offi¤ Euilding The mount outstmding undrthis faciliry is 3l Mffih 2025: INR 233.38 lm{1l.03.2024 is 0 la6)
This fscility hs sine ben closed on April 24, 2025.

On July t 2025, the Cotrpsny availed a ffi loan ton ICICI Bank of INR 43.00 lm fo bwins, at m irner¤d ralr of 9.rlvop.a The arnourf outstarding mdtrthir facility is 31
March 2023; INR22.63 lm (31.03.2024 is 0lu)
On J8trurfy 10, 2024 the Compuy availed abuine lmn(Umeored) ffom HDFC Bok of INR 75.00 lac for busine*s, at m interHt ral6 of 13,5% p.il The emounl outsteading
unds this frcility iB 3l March 2025: tNR 49.36 ls. (31.03.2024 ir?1.58 lu)
On lvly 27 , 2072, &e Conpuy awiled a Ofrcc lm fiom A$r Bank ofINR 8?.00 186 f6 bBin¤ss, at an irt¤r¤sl ratc of 8.40lo p.s. Th¤ amaurt outrtarding undr this frcility is
3 I Marth 2025: INR 0.00 l8cs. (3 1.03.2024 is45.60 lscs)

On Februuy 28, 20?2, dto Conpmy availed a Unrcured lom tom IDFC Bmk of INR 51.10 ls for burino, at m idss! ral¤ of 15.00,6 p.a The mount outrtanding uda
this lacility is 3t March 2025: INR 0.00 lm. (31.03.2024 is I1.25 ls)
On Mdch 17, 2022, the Compey availed a Buine (Unmurd) lou frm Y* Bqrk of INR 30.13 lrcs for buins, a! u interst nle of 15.50/0 p.a. 'lhe munt ouistanding
..-J.-.1:- t^-ir:.r,:- a! r.^--t.n.a.

6 lnng-Tem Provisions

Particults
A.! on Mlrch

31,2025
"4s on M.rch

31,2824
Provision for Gmtuity
Pmvision for Leve Encashment

36.81
6.80

.l':l.6r

53.07

53.O?

'7 Short-Term Borrowings

As on Mqrch
31,2U24

Secur*d Ioms
Cash Credit
Cunmt Mamnties of l-ong tem bonowings
I-insecured l,oans
Current Maturities of Long tenn bonorvings
tsmk Overdraft
Emergency Credit Line Gu{slt* Scherne (ECLGS)
Buycr's Credit tbr Partl Payment
Inter Corporate Lom

688.0It
56.44

25.41
t0.77

t22.95

644.16
30.87

44.62
35.64

140.00
662.96
228.J3

903.65 1.786.88

As m llarch
31.2025

'lhc Conrpmy hr bffi gmtcd Cash Credit facilit-v of tNR 1,700.0O lacs tionr ICICI Bank seurcd b.v a hypothecation charge or¤r the Conpan-v's Crnetrt Assets
atd Fixed Assetslbr finmcrng working capiial rcquirement. The dram &lrount is repayat'ie on demand. l'he t'acility ol ICICI Bmk besrs u [rterest Rate ol Rl]l
Rcpo Rato rSpread of 2.90\'o. As on ll.-1.2025 lnterest Rate *as 9.409.6 ss 5*"i6o,1 ny the bark from lirnc tu time .

The amounl outstmding under tbis facility is
buk rvhjoh rvas fully repaid on 04.09.2024).

lacs (As on 11.0.1.202.1 lhere wss a Cash Crcdit balanx ol Rs.644.16 lacs t'rom Aris

4NEW D¤LHI
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fi Th" Cotp*y has ben granted Unsecured overdmft facility of INR 50.00 lscs from 'l'ata Cspitsl for tinancing working epitll requiremmt. The drawn amount is
repayable on demand. The facility ofTata Capital bears m intorest rato of l6olo p.s.
Ths mount outsBnding undor this faciliry is 3l March 2025: INR 6.94 lacs (3 1.03.2024 is 23.61 laqs).

il T'he Company has been grantod Unsecured overdraft faoility of INR 28.06 lacs &oru Bajaj Finance for financing working epital requirement. The drsrvn amount is
repayable on dcmand. The faoility of Bajoj Finance beus an intorest mte of 160/o p.a.
Th¤ amount oubtanding under this faoility is 3 I March 2025: INR 3.82 lacs (3 1.03.2024 is t2.02 lecs).

iv During Ft 2022:23, Relcon Infra Projects Limited have provide.d Inter ccrporate Loan of Rs. I 18.00 lacs exclusively for Working Capial iBusinoss Expmsion @
Nilralcof Interestwithtenurcof4yean.Asat3l.03.2025thsOutstandingBalmceisRs. 118,00 laos(FY-Rs. ll8.00laes).

v DunngFY2019'20'PisalntemarionalPrivatel-imitedhaveprcvidcdlntercorporat¤LouofRs.5.00 lacsexclusivelyforWorkingCapitel/BusinessExpansionl@
Nil rate of Inrerest whioh has becn repaid on 3rd July 2025. As at 3 L03.2025 the Outstanding Balance is Rs. 4.95 lacs (PY - Rs. 4.95 lacs).

vi Th" Oth"t Inter cotpomt¤ Losns tcken t'rom Krisha Infrasol Limited, Shree Enterpriss has been fully rcpaid during FY 202.1-25. As at 3l.03.2025 tlre Combinod
Oulstsnding Balgnce ofthose Loans rrs Rs. 0.00 laos (PY - Rs. 105.48 lacs).

vll In respen:t of working capital toans, quanerly retums or statcments of current assets liled by tho company for the F .Y 2A24-25 are in agrement with the bmhs of
asounts other thu those * set out below:

Name of brnk Qurrter
Hnded

Perdcrrhrc

i\mount as
reported in the
{lrsrterly
retum/
ststemen(in

Amomts
per bmlc of
account (in
kcs)

Amount ol
dllfcrence
Cn laa)
f,rcesd(Sh
on)

Axis Bank Jutr-24 tiundry D¤btors t.o94, t4 I,OJ /.UU Jt.t4

lClCl Bank

Se*24 Sundry Uebtors I,Ot). tv zd6oJt - t t.vz
Dec-24 sundry Debtors 1,E42.94 1,E08.96 JJ.Y6

Mar'25 5Undrv cfedrtors 2,t7b.LZ 2,1t7.t9 )tr.vJ
rjudry lreDtos 4,40 t .4U 5,447.97 -l,040.57

Noto ' Above variances &¤ on rccoutrt of poriod ended book closure accounting entries being rwoded subsequent to submision of statements to the bank, which is
ptepared on the basis ofpmvisioml financial intbrmation.

8 Trade Payrblc

Pordculars
As on March

31,2o2S
As on Merch

3r,2024
lOtrl Uutstandug ducs of Micro and Smsil
Enterprises
Tofal Outstanding dues ofTrade Payables other than
Micro end Smoll Enierprises

t24.40

1.992.79

237.71

792.26
2,111.19 1,029.97

Atnounl due to Miso Enterpris ud Smalt Enltrpris¤8 as dsfined in the Mim, Small and Modim Emerpris Ds¤lopmef,t Ast, 2005 s mmded mouniing to Rs. 124.,10 lacs
(Previou yetr Rs. 237.71 lac). This infomstifi hs bffi dstemined to thc sxtent such pstie have bm idmtified on the basir of Udym Cstifisre' reeiverl from lhe puti* by
tho Cmps''.
Diellmc u raluired andq Swtion 22 of lhe Mim, Smll ad Medim Enterpris D¤velopnffi Act, 2006, as mmde<! are as und* :

m

Pardflhn Ar on llerch
31, 2025

As on March
tt,2024

lhc tsmclp8l {mourl and the inieesl due thtr6n minin¤
unpaid to uy supplir on Balme shed da& :

Trade payabl* : Principal
Interest (rcfcr prior period nolc 38)

r24.44
7.95

231.7t
NII-

e. u,Frelt Fs 0y urc uuycr ilr rsrro ur
16 of lhe N{iqo, Snall md Lledim Dnlerpri*s Development
Act 2006, s mmde4 aloog lvith the uountof rhe payment
nude to dre supplic beyond the qpointed day during rhe
!er,
rr.c d{eu'r or [l.srgrr uuc dru payaotc tq tne ve{ oI qelSv
in m.t-in^ n4r*4-. /.rl:^l ..-.- l.-.. -.:t i... r..

rr<' !!err Pd,s

appointed day duirg the 
''etr) 

bul without adding rhe inr6st
pccificd undq the ltliqo. Snull ard llrdiun Ertcrpriscs
Developsml A$l 2006:

7.t5

'fhe mount of intdesl acmed md rcmaining unpaiJ as un
llaldcE Shet date;

i.95

uurS use dru P4)rurc
evm in the succecding vem, until such date $tm the interwt
dues abovc ile actually paid to tlre mall enrcrprise, lbr the
purpose of disallorvmce of a dcrlurlible expmdiaure unds
wction 23 ol the luiro, Small md blediw llnle.prises
Delrlopmqlt -{ct, 2006.

\*

\\t-y
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TRAI'E P,dYABLF^S AGEING SCHf,DIJI,E I

As on Mrnh 3l , 2023

AsonMrrch 202{

9 Other C\rrrent llabifties

l0 Shorl Term Provtstms

14 Doferred Trx Asts

Perdodrn Outstandlrrg for fol!ilrlng pedodr {tom lte drte of tmmtlon
Itrthmf 1-2 Y¤ar 2-3Y6r Morethmlyw Totel

Undlrputed dm -
Mi*o enteapirs ard anall entcrprise
Other than mim emerpris md rnall mterprisa
Dlrpuied duo -
Micra ent¤rpris¤s and mdl mtdprise
Orherthmmim at¤rpris ed wll enterprisec

t24.40
1,909.55 13.22 3.60 66.42

124.40
1,992.79

Total 2,033.95 1322 3.60 &42 2,117,19

Lt
Pardcukn llmthefor

Lsthrnl
yer l-2Yru 2-3Ya Morclhm3yo Totrl

Und&puted dueo -
Micro orlerpdss and $n ll eil¤rprise
Othc thor mim anerpies ard snatl ¤lltspris
Itfuput dduef-
Micm arerprises ud snall oterpris
Other than nicro enterpries and srall entsfpris

237.7t
518.44 28.0t 92.18 ts2,96

237,71
192.26

Total 756.15 ,8.08 v2,18 152.96 1,029.97

Prrdcthn
As on Mrrch

31,2025
As on Mrrch

3\2n4
Advonce received from Coslom¤rg
Sharo Applioation Money Payable
l,eass Equalisation Resorve
Security Doposit Rocoived
Employco Ecnofits Payablo
StshrDory Dues Payablo
UnoamodInaomo
Capital Crcditor
Liability for Exponses

11.26
0.02
t.32

235.38
&1.43

136.53
7,36

49.81
46.21

28.r0

134.90
4.02

193.91

12.96
5St32 373.E9

Psrticuhrs
.ds on Mlrch

31,2025
As on Msrch

31,2t24
Pmvision for lncome Tsx
Provision for Gnnrity
Prcvision for kavs Enceshment

285.41
0.65
0.24

101.25

286.3r 101.25

Particulars
As on Vterch

lt rot(
r{s on ilIarch

tt tnr,t
I
I

I)efered Tar Liabilitv
Timing DilTemce for l)epreciation
Crstulty

Detbned Tax Asscts
Depraiation
Lcavc Enqshmmt
[.ease liqualisation Rcsene

(4 14)

7.43
2.05
0.38

9.29

Deferred'l'ax Assets (Net) 5.32 9.29

.\ t-\ulz\}
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P*dculars
As on Manh

3L20,'3
As on Msrch

31,2U24
Capital Adv8nes 99.53 7.53

99.53 7.5:l

15 lnng Term Lonns & Advmce

16 Inv¤ntorid

Pmdculars
As on March

31,2t25
As on March

31,2024
Inventories 854.53 515,38

854.$t 515.38

Raw Malerials, Conponenfi, Cmstruction lvlarfiats, Storts, Spus md lrc Tools at lowef of Cosr tr Net Rslisbl¤ Value.

17 Trade R*elvrbls

Perficulars
As on Msrch

31,2ln5
As on Mertb

3t,2924
Unsecured, Considered Cood 5,613.38 3,679.55

5.613.38 3.6?9.55

TRA.D8 RECEIVASLBS AGEING SCHEDULE I

A! o[3] MaEh2(lzs tl

.\s on 31 Manh 20i14

the dste

Toial

3.6?9.55

r n?q 5{

18 lihort-term Loans & Advances

Particulars
As on Msrch

tl, 2025
As on Msrch

31,202.t
inler Corporsae Lo&t t.33

9.33
On 28th Decenlber 2024, The Compmy have pmvided Inter corporate Loan of Rs. 9.33 lacs to Pacimo llospitality Private l-td cxclusively tbr Working Cepital @
Nil ratcoflnterestwi:htenureof l0year.Asat11,03.2025the OutslendingBalurceisRs.g.-13 lacs(PY-Rs.0.00 lacs).

ln

(t)

PrrdculaF Unbllled
Revenw

Outrarndlar for follodnr Derlods llom liedate oftrsrsrcdon
Lqe&rn 6 6monthr I l-2Ym 23Yo More ihan Total

(i) Undirputed Trade Rec¤ivabl*
a)Cmidcod Good
b)Cmid*d Doubtfirl
Les: hovisim fc doubtful drbtj

(ii) Dirputed Tmdo Reivabl*
a)Cmidccd(iod
b) CNidered doubttul

1,2t2.33 3,i05.23 674.31 506.40 6.15 108.E9 5,613,38

t,2t2.33 3,105.23 674.37 506.40 6. l5 108.89 5,6r3.38

Totrl 121233 3.r05.23 67431 506..r0 6.t5 r08.t9 5.5133t4

Partlculan Unblllcd
Revsue Lsthm6 6 monlhr I 1-2Yw t-3Yru More lhan

t,207.58 2,286.78 l l.0l 9.91 82,2J 82.04

(i) Urdisp0ted Tnd¤ R*eivablq.
a) Co$idred Good
b) Cmidoed Doubtfirl
Lru: Pmvision fu doubtfirl debts

(.ii) Dsputed Tmde R*ivabla-
n) Cosidsed Cood
o, lo[rrosgd rr@oullt

1,20?._18 2,286.78 I l.0t 9.91 32.23 82.04

Tolal r,!07.58 2J86.7t 11.01 9.91 42.23 82.0.r

NEW D¤LHI
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Prrticulsrs
.ds on Morch

3\2AlS
As on Msrch

31,2V24
Cash and Crsh Equlvalens
Cash in Hand
Balances with Banks
In Fixed Demsits

0.18
9.65

15t.00

0.47
3.01

r99.79
160,t3 203.27

f9 Crsh And Bank BsLnce

20 Otisr C\rrrent Assets

V
&

?,.\

Detall of Fired lhposlts
.{s on Mrrch

3r,2045
As on Marc{r

3t,zn4
Bank. depooits rhe to mture within 12 mornle oftlc
rcpoiing dato 100.00 199.79
Bank d¤posits due to mture afls 12 months oflhe ncpcting
dile, 51.00

1S1.00 199.19

PNrticulsrg
As on Morch

3L 2ms
As on Msrdr

31,2fr24
IPO Expense assex
Sharo Application Money Rocoivable
Prepaid Insuranco
Ac{rusd lltereston Fixed Deposit
Scourity Deposir Peid
GST lDput
Less : Provision for GST hput
Advance to Staff
Advanco to Supplior
Other Advarcer

36.00
0.03
7.40
7.02

53?.53
139.23

(l 14.78)
31. 14
?2.92
2.19

I l.0l
3.&

324.5A
12t.85

50.33
4.26

0.59
66&6t 512.lt
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Sotelin Bharst Prtvare Llmited
(Formerly linom ar Sotefin Prrkhg Prlvate Limlted)
Notei lo llnanclal statementr for the year ended Mrrch 31,2025
cIN - U29221W82012PTCr75825
AII amounls are in lacc accep otherwise stoted

21 Revenue From Operadonr

22 Olhtr Income

23 llthteriah Consumed

2{ Employee Benefits Expense

N,

804.83 g q

Prrtlculers
For the year ended

Ivlsrch 31,2025
For the year ended
March 3I,2024

Export
Sales (?arking System)
Service farking Coasultancp

Domestic
Sales (Parking System)
Service @arking Consdtancy)

962.31 603.75

962.31

8,063. l0
352.24

603.75

4,748.00
276.57

8115.33 5,024,57

9377.65 5.628.32

Particulars
For the year ended

March 31,2025
For the year ended

March 31,2024
Income from Scrap Sales
Interest on Fixed Deposit
Customs Duty Drawback
Reirnbursement of Expenses
Trasferred to factory building (refer prior period
note 38)
Exoess provision for gratuity written baok
Balances Written Back
Other Income

4.98
I 3.96
2.29

40.64
15.60
88.41
4.39

8.69
7.32

21_16

0.01
3.r2

170.27 .t0.30

Particularg
For tte year ended
March 31,2025

For the yerr ended
Merch 31, 2024

Clpening Stock
Add:
Expenses r¤lating to knport ofGoods
Purohase ofMaterials for Parking Systern
Less: Closing Stook

5 15.38

958.52
2,t27.66

854.53

804.83

862.02
1,805. l6

5 l 5.38
2,711.03 2,956.63

2,117.03 2,956.63

Particulars
For the year enderl
March 11.2025

For tfte year ended
iVlarch 31,2024

Salaries, wages, bcnus and other allclvances
StaffWelfare Expenses
Cratuity
Leare Encashmcnt
Emplover's Contribution to Pro"-ident Fturd

5 15.85
2'7.04

9.65
16.28

465 89
25..13

ti 12

t6.24

568.82 5.r2.98

NEW DELHI



25 Fhrnnce Cort

26 OtherEtpenser

Partlcularr
For tfte yeu ended

Mrrch 31,2025
For lhe year ended
March 31.2024

Lxerest Expenses
Bank Commission
Bank Charges
O&crBonowinc oost

1s7.56
t5.74

1.63
25,t7

134.86
0.65
2,.r2
6.87

200.10 144.!0

Partlculars
For lfie year ended

March 31.2025
For lho year ended

Il,I!rch 3f,2024
Civil & Installation Expenses
SiteExpenses
E4port related Expenses
Confact ttocr.uement Expense
Testing Expenses
Auditors' Reouneration

StatutoryAudit Fees
TaxAudit Fees
GSTAuditFees

Legal & hofessional Fees
Machinery Hire Charges
Printing and Stationery
RentExpeasa
Offise Mairt¤ngnce
Travelling & Conreyance
Corpmaie sooial responsibility Exp
Telephore and ltrt¤rnet Chsrges
Elootricity Chargos
Insurance Cbnrges
IT Rolated Expenses
Car ll4aintenance
CarRunaing Expenses
Brokerage Charges
Penalty under Agreernent
interest and lrte Fine on Governmeirt dues
Rates & Taxes
Bad Debts
ffT Charges
Mscellaneous Expenses
Balanoes Wrifien off
Loss on Exchange Fluctuations

174.39
8.59
1.48

41.56
3.39

160.53
10.00

1.66
ll.16
5.03
7.62
2.49
6.97
1.79

46.20
34.12
14.44
44.02
4.13

33.40
<1t

23.31

3,547. I 3
8.65
t.2t

38.79
2.40

8.50

666.17
42.45

75.71
10. t0

0.50
0.20
0.20

113.68
i8.28
2.31

38.46
6.04

242.48

1.52
7.72
6.15

t l.6l
4.01
6.74

8.06
50.90

1.66

0.26

6.90
4244.28 t322.tt h,
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SOTr]f tN BItAnA'l' pRrv.,tTli Ll\trTDI)
$'oilnerly klom ru lbtrlin Parking hvale Limittd)
:,ldts to nnilcial statenrent! for ttle leu ended Marrh 31, 2O2Stix . urczrr wrror2prclTsr2s
:lU omour$ ure it, la6 q.:apt othwiJe stiled

frcpcrl1'" Plurt ud Equiptrrcil
Aote No. ll

lht l'Y 2t)2,t-25

Addltioru tluing
the Y¤ar

Ar at Marcli 31,
2024

g/5.56

70r _50
197.75

16.02
4.t6

I 1.96
&.63

0.18
2.50
0.86

Nct crrn

Asat Mmh3l,
2025

\441.86
183.92

14.49
3.66

27.94
o.t3
6-24
0,.74

l194-8*

As at Mtnh3l,
2025

82.08
1.69

39.r6
18.85
65-t2

0. l3
8.42
3.85

2t9Jo

Adjutrmr
Nhdngto
pdor liear

ltlQn , AmoftIlalton

hringtln
yw{mrgh
Revalndon

Rene

16.47

16.47

Durine th¤y6
rhmuehPL

it',
1.52
2"79
3:t4

12.69
0.05
0.33
0.87

2/LA6

As ri April 1,2044

oits
0.t7

36.37
15.60
52.43
0.09
8.09
2.97

177-97

As it Mscb31,
2023

1,M'7.86
266.O0

t6.19
42.42
24.75
93"06
o.z7

14.66
4.58

1514.19

Disposdl
Adjwtusb

durirlg ttu Ys
Revdution

during the year

1t.77
6.00

t7,77

334.60

tao
Ll8

4.06
o.75

342.E8

As at Apr{ l, 202{

l0 l 50
260.00

16. It
4t'.53
2'i^56
93.06
o.27

l().60
-].83

1.153.5!

fam-culan

'l'urgibles
Itehola t-,i
trtiicc ltuilclirrg
hulotr",
(lonq)u19r l lddwur
futiture and Fixlurc
i{otut vohi"lu
ljl&lrieal Llslailation & liquiprncnr
ilachitcrit's urd })quipmrnts
t)llice lxluipnent
.llokrr llike
TOTAL

tlE l'Y 2023-2{
Gt.N

rlddltiorrs Durirg
the I'ur

As at Manh 31,
20It

98/l.9r

701.50
21E.57

9.09
l3.ll
38"60

0.01
2.89
1.t4

Amount

tu8iMmh3l,
2024

701.50
ln.75

16.02
4"29

11.96
&.64

0.18
2^36
0.E5

97555

As at I\lmh 31,
2W4

62.25
0.17

36.37
15.60
52.42
0.09
8.10
2.97

l1't.97

AdJBlnent
reliting to
prlor yw

Durlng the
ywthrmgh
Revduafion

Rene

7.46

7.46

Ilurlng tbe yru
dmghPL

13.36
a.t7
6.73
3.93

15.57
0.05
0.69
o-29

/1o.79

IlcFr$irdon / .{mordsfi on

tu st April l, 2023

4l_43

29,&
I 1.67
36.85
0.M
7.41
2.5A

,29.?2

Ar 8t Msnh 31,
2024

701.50
264.U)

16.19
&.66
2'1.56
93.06

o.2'7
to.47
3-43

1,15354

Disposal i
AdJuhrents

during thc Y¤n
R¤vdu|tlotr

durlog the ysr

16. l9
i.93
2,78

t7.61

(1. l?
0.0 r

3&9r

-4.s at Apdl l, 2tl2.l

3E.73
?4.78
?5.45

().05

10.3t)
J.E2

71J L50
26{).00

r,tl{.(]

lltuticu.lan

'Tugible
[te]rold l..ard
itXfice l3uil<iing
'(iarlowr
.(Lunputur lladwue
lludturc Md |ixlurs
'Motor Vehiclc
illtruri(ul lrytallalior & liquiplrr.nls
' lvluchiteri* ard Etluiilucnb
'{4lice L',ouioman
rit ()'f .{ L

NEW D¤Lr{l
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(irpitd lvork in Pregms
i{ote - t2

lle &Y 2U2{-25
(jrss

Addidorc llurlng
lhe Yeu

810.42
r28.67

Aa d Much 31,
2424

215.00

215.00

As at Mreh 31,
2025

1,025.42
t28.6't

l.lsrt ll!,

As rt MNnh3l,
2025

Adjutuetrt
relrtitrg to
prlor yar

Durhg thc
yer ttmugh
RcvrhudoD

Rmne

hrtngtheye
t}reugh PLAs at Apdl 1, 2024

AsatMmh3t.
2fi25

t,425.42
r2837

1.t54.0t,

Disposl /
.4.dJuhents

during the Yw
Rwclmtl,on

duringthets

,9.(B

.ls !t April l, 2{l2t

2l ,r,01)

21s.txl

Particulan

laaul,Iluilding
Plulrt Maciriricry

T.] A L

1\'2023-21

lniangible Assets
,\..ctc - 13

Additiors lhrlng
lhe Year

t51.96

As al Much3l,
2023

63.44

6t.M

osAm(utNet Crn

Ar at Much3l,
2024

215.00

21i00

AraxMrch3l,
2ff24

AdJruhrent
refsti.g to
prior ysr

Duingdle
yruthrcug!
Revalmdm

RwNe

/ Armrdmfion

Durlng the yw
lfirugb ?LAs st April l, 2023

.{r sf Mrsh 31,
2024

215-00

21500

Dirposaf /
AdJubnflts

durlng tln Yerdudsg the ysr
RddetionAr at "{pril l, 2023

b-i.0-l

63.0{

Partirularr

f&ls),lluilding

'l'r) f A L

ls 2024.25

Fe lhe !Y 2D23-2.1

Anmt

.A.ddltior s D(ring
dre fcs

tz.1a

trgAmul

AratMmh3l,
2024

1.26
0.04

l3t

AeatMmh3l,
2tz5

12.95

12.9S

Asat MaEh3l
2t2S

18.65
o.72

1937

AdJutment
mlrtiog to
prior ]Hr

Durirg the
ywtbrough
Revalmfon

Resene

A[ordsdon

Durhgtheyru
tbrough PL

1.09
0.04

1.13

17.56
0.6E

18'.24

& er Apdl t, 2024
As rr Mmh3l,

2025

31.60
o.72

3232

Disposl /
AdJwhents

dudng thc YHr
R¤valuflon

duing the y*

r2.7r I

As et April l, 202{

i 8.E2
|i.72

l9.sJ

l'!dl(ulaN

lnangibles
iomluter Sofl$rc
ISO Cerriticati<rr

'l r)'IAL

As al MaEh 31,
2023

0.05

t.20t -i{t

As st Mffih 31,
2t24

1.26
0.04

Ar at MaNh 31,
ta21

t"t.56
0.68

t*2[

AdjNbrent
rdadng fo
prlor 

'sr

mllon

Dulng alc
yer itrcugh
Revah.don

Rerye

Durlng ltre yro
through PL

3,38
o.0l

3-:i9

As lt Apdl 1,2023

t4.l'l
Q"67

l4-ta.l

NEW

Addidors lluiag
the Y@rAs sa April 1, 2lt2:l

0.50

Itar"ticulm

Ailout

l9.U.l

18.82
o.72

As at March 31,
ztt{

Disp6d/
Adjoltrrcnts

dui:ng {he Yw
Rcvalullon

dudng the y6r

r I 1?

0.'72

lnailgibles
Computtr Soltwac
ISO Ccrliticdtion

'1 ..) l'A l"

V %&^&q



(Formerl5r hrm as Sot3lh Prddng Prlvate Ltnlied)
Not s b nr.nclnl strt¤rn¤nls for the yff qded March 31,2025
c-lN - u292tr wB:lot2yrcl?sczs
AU ofroutta se ir Lc6 Kept othqw,se sute.I

17 tr'rmlngr D¤r lhe
Baic EPS mou8 ffi cahulat d by drviditrg &e p$fit for lhs yw attibutablc to cquity hotdw by tlrc mightod emgc nmb¤r of
squity strc oulstffding dwing the yw.
Difuted EPS ffiuB G caloulalcd by dividing tho protl attibqublc to r4uity holdm (aftcr adjwting for intsct on dE consrtblo
pl¤fw rhal6, if 6ty) by lho weigfucd awigs nmbq of cquity ihffi ouBtmditlg dqing rhc yctr plE 6c Bcigh&d imdge {ubar
of cqlity slws {ur wodd bc isuel on mim of .ll tl$ dilutiw pqteilirl equity rbe hto e4uity slEe!,

lvrBhtpd sv¤nge trumb¤r of tr{rlty ihrN y6r

Profit lo omgp
Welghted avwge nufrber of equlty shrc orlginal
Opsnhg equity she
Add - Shasi$edduiru treyw
tmpml of bm$ is df*tcd (allotnmrof 1,15,71,240 botru sh$ at f@
v.lue of R3 l0 seh)
WeiShtsd Awrage ounb3r of Equlty Slns post bonw used I dsomimtor
in EalcuhtlDg BNlc &mhgs Per Shs (B)

q98,940

t.t5,1t,240 1.15,71.240

rJ6,90,139 1,r5,70,180

EPS - Bslc(A/B) (Rr)

W.ighhd Awago nubrr of Equity Sll@ F)Et bon6 uql d ddminatq itr
oatoulattug Dilu&d Emin8r Po S[e
Ecect ofDilutiotr
Weightd Nvdge n[mber of e4ulty ih8ru tdj6ted for the efect of diluuo
ouistardhg Nt tftc ¤rd ofthc ys (C,

1.26.90,i39 1,25,ror80

116,90.r39 115,70,180

EPs-Dumd (A,/c) (Rs) 9.68 3.65

+Thffi m no dilutivo poratirl equty rhG.
28 The compey hu sdopted tJlo mdstory Aeountlng Siandard AS - 15 (Revlsed) employe betrellta The schm¤ lJ unfbnded

Cntulty - De nNd Bcneflt PLr

a) Stat@at of Prc61& LN

wl
hidld c¤t
PstSdi@C6r
Nst A.Sudial Iscr4cdr)
B6oib paid
Toal opanc ruogni*d in rh. Sbtmmr of Prcfir & ls
Pric P6iod AdjwErm!
&$¤u6 {o bo scogtris.d in Cltmt Yce

2.15

(1.90)

9,98.940
1,1t 959

b)

6.6
Q2.2q
(15.60)

31.46

6.40
2.15

tl.90)

is

l.l0

t0.21
(r.79)
15.68

30.80

r)

Fair ValE ofphn As.b
Btrf s (Aaets/ (Liabrlity)

Pr6qt il
Cmntswi*c@t
lnl@a4l
PatSwieCqt
AclrdlrlGaisllM
Bqefib paid
I'r*nt Valuc of DBO .t drc snd of psiod

Rate of incwo in galaie
Erpccied R t¤ of shm 0 Plan.,\$cr$
Aaritim! Ratax baecd on age (qo p.a.)
Uglo 30 yeG
l'.o0 3 I yc& i0 .l,l ) caD
\Iorc the .l.l ye{s

l. t0

10.2r
(1.7e)
30.80

Tfte lcy dswptim 6ed in the cdculatioru rtrc 6 folloss
!'ln8rclsl AssumDtlore - Mrrch J1,2025 iurch Jl, 2024
I)iicount Rate 6.8006 '19'o

1o/i' 106
N-A.

1.00
2.00
L00

3.00
2.00
l.{}0

& 4

For the yff erded
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29 IaYe En8hm.nt

Durlog FY 202,t25 Adurrid Vdultlon of lAye Etrshment vB done for th¤ llBt y¤ar v.e.t 2021-22.The Sche me b Urfurded

Pasr Sfliw Calt
Lratrst Cosl
Nct Acturill (Gaio) / Ld
Pro6t & Im fr tho yec
I-dt Ysd Adjwnnab
Exp¤trs chrrge to Prcnt & Lq

Opetrl[g Bslss
Habiity duirs {rc fY
Bdcea Paid
Ltsblllty in Belanco Sheet

30 Relsted Darty dl$lolur¤c (As psr ANoutltra Standtrd l8- Relaaed Frty dbclosuH)

A NmB of Elated p&ti6 and related pirty Fl{Uonship

() Relsted plrtiBilheresnlrol oxlsts

Nme of Relrt¤d Putl6
Relc@ trnFa Proj@ts Lld.
Krishr In&dot Privrlc Limit¤d
Pis Intmalional PriBtc Lifritcd
Peimo H@pitolity Priwrc Linied

0.46 0.22
0.33 3,01
3.07 5.21
6.58 - -9.65 5.21

9.65
z.6l
1.44

Rolatlotrshlp
Elterpri& ovd which key Meigmmt Pmmcl @ ablo !o qffiis signfimt iniumcc
Entsrpri* oq which tcy Maagffit P6oma[ @ able lo **ie signiiml inflHce
Enlerpcire ow which key Megmmt Pdomcl do ablo to qffiie signifiemt iDJlum@
Ento{rido M which koy l{qsgmmt Pwomdl o able to exrcire signific&t in{qe

B

(lt) Kcy Manrsemcnl Pe@nnel
Arup Choudhui (lvlarging Dimtoo
Ji8l6hP Sa4hfli(DiNtor)
Monalis Gb6h(Sxsuiw DiMtd w.c-f.7th May 2025)
Jays Smguph (Chief Finocial tficq w.c.f- 3rd ffih 2025)
Biswrjit Da (ConpNry S@rctary w.¤.f. 1 zrh nuy 2025)

3l
No PrrtlculG NMs of R¤h{ed Prrty

For the yeil ended
Mrrch 31, 2025

For tlle yd ended
[INrh 31, 2024

1 DircloE Rmucrstim Am Chsudhui
lioffih P Srnohfli 15.fl) 24.(n

2 Snlcr P.Ln ln&, krn I ihird 56m 1GR 7'
sala JMSffinb 1.50

4 LMT*a P6l.n ln$r khDtc I i6i..d *m
a InIiMl PriBte Limit d I 5-OO

l,whl& Krirhe Inftd.il Prihb lihilDd 273.96 2T2.AA
6. RfttF-ffi6 P*d rn*' kiwt. I i6ir., {63 L76

t ilsim &im Hffiildim Prhft Iifrilrd 9.33
Cffi@oimr Prirnd lt'mia{itu hs t i6ird 1.025.00

sl
Nq P.ntculiB Nrme of Relrt.d PNrty

lFor the Jw flded

lMlEh 
r t, 2o2s

For lhe yeff qdod
!turh Jr, 2024

I Dimtos Rnmmtim Payable t1
(6.: fl

1 SaIfiY
fBde R@ivablc

4 Inm tjrbiliry Tnfra al l 8_001
K;rfi. Intuol |fur. I i6ihd {1.17\

{4-95 44.95)
5 Tnde Pdrblc N Infi-abl hiqtd I i#rad n7a r\6\

Liabilitv for L\tmB elcd InFe Pdute IimiGd (3.
7 omm'fr Priin^ Hffiirrlirv hiiero r.imird 911
t t-025.oo 1.02t.(ru

icombined Gllrm@ alongwirh Pie lnroMfonal P.ivare l,imired & Projet f,nginecriAg

3t

c

GS I t)ffind
I-etrer of Crcdil for Impoil

17.32
&r.86

265.87

l8J 75

Order dded Nov :f, )02.1 {ronr Sajcs l {r l)dicsr W4d68]Zonc.l l)elhi allcging Shon pa}lnenr of GST ourpDr ra eouring to t{s. -10.21 lacs (Rs.
l0.l I lacs (--GS f & tu. 10.I I Ia.$ re SGS'I duc to mirmatch of cS l R-l md GS l R- .lB lbr dc mdrh of M&ch 202I along with irterest mouting tu.
15.08 lacs splinbg into RE. 7,5J lics bder CCS'| & ScS I each ild 100,6 i,tulb- mounting I{s. Lol l.cs under CCiS'l & SCS-|.
Appeal $cd against tlrc dbovc ordcr on 10.0J.?025 & Itr. ll.l7 lis deporitcd *ith appcalatc aurhority

Clombincd Cur&rl!'e gilctr by $otgiin bha$t pnvatr'limite(i riongrith Pisa Intcrudoral Priv.te !.imited & proidct lngincedng lbr l.om b]m by Pacieo
llospitali* I'rivatc Limired
-'Im Loa 650.00 650-00
- fmt-on.2 100-00 300.t]0
- occ 75.00 75.0{J

CNpital Commltnreot
.lmount ol lonr3ots, ncl oi.dvaraes, rcninining {o bc j\cculed on ;apilAj i!co(a! dnd wbiufi havc nol b&t prorjdr(l ior in lhe tinancial stalamcill
aggrlzale lo u\R 27t q9 lars (ItRiora lrar n\'R \.IL)

|e6e b/
9.

For lhe y@r ended I.or lhe !r!r eoded

NEW D¤LHI ?.\ 4



Thc Compmy lw akcn c¤dain prmirB udd ceccllablc 8d nm¤cellablc opcrating lw ilquqflis. M6t of rhc leoq rc mwable for fiuther
period{r) m mutually agrcablc tem ed ds inchrdc malatim claw. Thc Cmpmy ha R{ognized INR 41 .56 IiB (PrcvioE yeil INR 38.46 lc)
d lee txp@c in tlre sl'tmeil of holil ad IA, Thc Cmpary ha iltqcd inlo opeEring lee amtgrmhts for off@ prcmbos,

$^-
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Sotefn Bhanl Pdvite Llmltcd
(T'ormcrly known as Sotsfln PsrHng Pdvtte Lltrdtcd)
Not¤s to inmchl strtements for the te.f ended Mllch 31, 2025
clN - u2922rwB20l2PTCI75S25
AU or,oun& 6e h Laa acqt ortmise staed

34 Crpltrl Work In PresHs.{seinE gcbedule :

Particu16

Oututoding for followlng periods from rhe drte of true¤lior,

Les thm I
Yeu l-? Ye& 2-3 Yery More lho 3

yee Totrl

(i) Factorv Building
(ii) Plant & Machinery pading

Instrllation

8t0.42
128.66

l5 1.96 63.04 1,025.42
t2E.66

ToLl o1a m tsr 06 i1M t lqm

Farticulm
Outrtanding for following periods lton the dqle of lmsacllor

LNlbu I
Ycu I-2 Yer 2i Yes Mom ths 3

yes TotrI

(t) FkatoryBuilditrs 15I.96 63.04 215.00

'l otal t(r 06 trq no

35 Unhsdesd foreim curcnw exDosurc s at

V.lue ofinporls crlculated on CIF bsis
Raw Marerial

Et|Etrdtaure in foreign onncy (on aerual buis)
Tnwlling orqauc

Emings itr foreign crchuge (auual buis)
Expot of godr olelated on l'08 brois

(lNR in lss)
Mmh3l, Mwh3l,

2t2g 2V24
958.52 862.02

------ru5X____s6ag8_
Mrch3l,

2Vt5
7.53

Meh3l,
2024

5.53
__?,5i--_-___l6l.

Merch 31.
2025

MKh,3l
2V24

962,31 603,75
____524r___6GJ!

36 ExDfidilurc on Corporcb Social RsDonsibilitv (CSR) rctivitiB r

Ir t!:'ru ol-provisions ol Section 135 ofthe Companics Ac!20 l3 tho required CSR spondhg for rhc ycu is *orkcd out

Prrticulm For lhe yeu ended
Mtrch 31.2025

l'or ilo 
'¤ar 

etrded
Mmh Jl - t{}2.1

Ll&qq!l! !9quired to be wtra bv the comDanv drino 1o.00

NA
Amomt of effirdift& incMed
Shortfall at the end of the vear

t0.00

Nlqrq ofCSR Activitics . Conhibution to Prim" ffi"i"t-1" Srt.'-rt 10.u0

M

q

For lhe yer. en&d
Merch 3l- 2lll(

For the ye* ended
Mmh 31.2024

Psraicul6
Amount (lr

Eurc)
Amdrt (in

usD)
AmouDt in
INR laq

Amounl (in
Eum)

Amotrnt (in
usD)

,{mounl in
INR lra

Tsds Rweivablw 1 1t t7L I 7A L"9 tm ?d 7 rla 6E^OlO 52.57
Tnd¤ Psyablq lof,ltl lot to Itll I l.

NEW DfLHI



37 Addltlonal Reolatow Infom.tlon :

Ratic Numomtor DenomitrNlor Curent Yeu Previoils "/o Vsrisrce 
lR¤narkr

Cu@t Ratio (in tims) Total Cuffit A$eil Iotal Crltmt Li.biliti6 1.89 1.49 270,6l tle significant increare in ules as compered
Ito thc prwious year has lead to 8 43olo rirc in
lTod" Re*iu"ble.. Consequmtly, all oher

lfactors remain mnshn! the Crlrmt Rstio ha$
lincrosd.
I

Debt-Equity Ratio (in tim6) Dsbt oruisB of burcwingr Totrl Eqrity 0.22 0.?0 -6961'thtro is r riuction in Shorl Tefin
lgono*ingr, as well s incrvre rn Shrre

lCatiral 
md Net hoftt

D¤bt Swic¤ Covmge Ratio (in
tinq)

Eming for Debt Serice =
NerPDfitbcforeTdss +
lit@t + Othq Nfr.c$h
Adiutrnatg

Debt Swice = tnlqests md Lqsc
Paymhts + kincipal R+rllmls

t.54 1.23
".1

Ctmt Rltio (i! times) Profit fo the yw Lcw
Prefmce Dividmd (if

Avmge Total Equity ?9.46 18.65 58%lDue sigriticant increese in Prcfit for the ya
lrhe 

Ratio Bot incrused

LrqtorJ' Tmova ratio (in
lim)

CGt oig&dr sold o. ul6 Avcmgc ioatode 4.01 4.48
'*^l

Tmdo Rs¤ivabls Tumffi
Rstio (in tim6)

Rwow &om Operalio Avmg¤ 'fsde RGivabls 2.02 3.49 --lThough Rcvcnue Fom Operation inorcased
but {tus to inorease of Tradc Rco¤ivsble
during f'Y 202+25, th¤ ratio decre0ssd

Tnds Payablq Tunovff Rrtio
(in tinw)

Ccdit Prrchaee r Crcdit
Irnport

Avmge Tmde Payrble 1.96 3.5? -45o,6lDuring Fy 2024-25 Trade Payable gol

lalmst doubled as s result lhe Rstia
ldecreascd

Net Capilal Tmov6 Rrtio (in
limxt

Rwfrw ftom Opoatiw Avmgc Wo*ing Capital (i.e. Total
Cllffit .qreir lRa Tolrl alftnl

3,71 3.94 -Ur"l

N¤t P0fit Ratio (in %) Prolit fq lhe y¤at Rwew Aom Opontioro 13.09 8.td 6t96lBoft Revqrue &om Opuaion and ltoiit hr
Itre yw incremed. Howver due inme in

| "zo of Prolit tre Ratio inqtased
I

Retum on Capital Employcd (in
v")

Itotit BetbF Ta\ ild
Fi@sC@ts

Capital Enploycd = Nct wffth + Total
debt + Defetrcd Ta\ Liabilitis

28.59 11.64 62%lThough Net woflh incro*d but Due to
lincruas in Prcfit Before 'Iax md Finmce
lCost fte Ratio incressed

Rebm a iNsi,Mt (othtr tlEn
wblidiaio) (in %)

lncw Aom ifl6tnot Awmg¤ lrrctmcnt 7.96 4.65 710,6lDue to significafi incrsse in interest income
lfor the yeer the ratio gol imreased
I

MEH
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a

Sot¤tln Bharot Pdr'lte Llmited
{Fomerly knosn st Sottfln ParLing Prtv.te Liehed)
Notes to llnsnclol 3tsteBent$ for thG yenr ended Mnrch 31, XO25
cL\ . ti292r1WBa012PTC 175&15
All anouts qre in lacs saept othffii* stated

3t Prlor Perlod ltens

Prrdulas .lmout
lnmme
frofeftd ro ldrerl blildirg -10.6,1

fotal {0.6{
(DMP

nl.rst on -\ISME C\fslandlnS 619
Leilecilrulnnenl lN prolirioil cstql d.-r8
Total lt,v

39 Olhs sia$tor) ltrlontrrtlon
(D nE C.rnpsy does rpt bflt aly BsMi prcpc!', shde ary pMccdir¤ 16 brs initjated or pdrding ¤ains :he Cornpet for holding ey Bermi prcpag'.
{ll) Theconpal'dosrpth6¤erytrdsctiorsrithci.npmissruckoffuderScctiorl{Sofc.hpedsict:013orkior560ofcomponidAcl, 1956
(lI) nE Frrpalyh¤ no{ taded s i$'¤red ir cr}?to ffi,v !r \irtual csenc! duing the frmiol ye'
(lv) lhe smpet hs mt adktEd rI l@rel rrr irrGted fimds to aq' odru pemr{s) or entiti* irchdilg fodgn *tities (jrfeonedi8idi \\'irh dE udenldrdirlg fh*

ntemPdia$, shall:
(?) (a)diGcllyoriudirsdytqrdorinvBtinotllrpffqsor!ftitieJidedfiedirilymauerBlBtsftv{b}'ormbsh¤lfofsrpury(dtirmlebsEicisris}

tb) p$vide ary ¤xr@re. rqdN or the lilie to or on bclrdf of tho ultirEtc b{cfisio6.
(vl) The oornpmy hd ret @ired a[y lln& lm[ oly peM{s) o. enLtylie$), ilc,luding fortigr entiti6inDldiry !d41 with drc udetstdrdirB (slEthq rq.r¤dql n

\ritiE or othf i$i thn the goup shall;
{r) di8c{}j or indir¤dl.v lsld or im.6l in odlq psms s irtitirs idenilied ir! al)" mru6 \\ilatsRy{ b} or or behalf fundilB pqq{ultinBte bqEfiduis } ar
O) prlide du" gu@lt¤, iwitl or the lilie if ar on belulf olthe ulrirMte bdl.tici{id.

(ril) 'nre Compe)- des rcr 16 e uy sdt lra8etio{ rvhicb is trot r¤rdqJ h tlre bsol5 of a@uils lhal h6 bcn surqdmd or di*losd as itFm durirg (lt )E4 itr
tle ta\ asrent3 fild¤f the htffie T&\ Act, 196 I

(tttl) TbeannpilyirrFtdsls$d6\ilnrldefslbrb-rdlytra{iqlirErealiNtitotiotrsa&dlnddr

J0 Slcnlfl6nt errnt! after the leOortln( date
The Board of DiNlm st its rndtrB beld o! JuN :-5, :01s, pu8usd tq Scc{iotr 63 axl olls appli¤ble p(o!isio&s, if any, of dE Camparid Ad" 2gl3 {d sls
nude thcrudo, pmpos¤d dEr a sw of Rr. f.157.13 bo ¤piraliz.d d Botrw Equity slreg out qf fre s6'6 ald slplw md disribut d snotst fin Equiry
Slnrsh<{dw b' i$w of 1,1J,71,:J0 EquiB's}e¤ of Rs. l0/. qdr roditcd a fuUy paid to $q Equity ShaNholdcF in tlD prcprtion of l0 (tu) Equitv rhare for
svqJ'1 (Orc) Equity rtuB. ti hc b6r spprovid itr the m*tiflg !'f 3h@holdsE hetd o! May 19, ]0!J. As a Gutl of tlis ltF nquiE,ponion of e{rcriad shaec4ttsl
of thc cmpary ia ai3¤d lo 2.5q0q000 equiq shm of fw r.alue of Rs l0 ach 6on Juc ?5, 2025. TIE i$w4 subcilrcd a ffilly gid{psquily rhss ceital of
lh¤ ¤mlarlya on ddcof siglrirE of the firmials is ll,t,l2J equiq'slrc! of f8a lalue af Rs 10 ¤chi.e. Re ll5.?t La$s. Emin¤p PETShN ¤ldL*iG hav.
ben FiEtatldin sll ftepsods to give qfre.t of thi! bonB.

{l Noa.onArdhTraU
Thc snpary lus sad a a@outng $ft$re tbr maintaining its bc.ks of mults riich docn't have a fed{B of rsrding audil ail astil lod faciliD' atd llE
6an¤ hs not r.p{atrd Utroughout tl¤ ,.tr, tbt all tusRoD duirg thd ! se. Hsrever, thr compilS' re itr p((ss of rmplerreRting a rts1r' URP 3ofr$s¤ $icir *tuld
nl*t sll rhd requiremts h relation to oudit tr8il.

{2 [lrcsp*lofdr6slrealloln{tiddedSeFnb{18,:0:1 dldJure:J,:0:],th3Compor).-lDdwlis6ledl.'qmP.{S-3rvithlheR.gistEofCoqEri${"RoC'').
Ho\B's, dueto srimdvertqt eo( the fomrBs fll.d urdr{E dtegoryof Priui¤ Plamrnti$tesd of Rights llsuc. Upondue<lilig{e Mied ost r@nll:', this
emr *a idartified, ad eqdingly, thc Compfi!' ha iuitidtid the preca of liling relis¤d PAs-3 to rffitel]' Fflet ths allotnEni d I Rillb Is$e. 'The rcdi¤d
irtirB ii p6stlj' uds prc6r and will be cail\tct d in sqdard qrth tlB provisiors of Secion l9(-l) cf tlte aompflie. .rrct, :gll Bsd tidl ltF Ceupmi6
/PrcEEcui rxl .Utonlsrl of Srqrriiis) Ruls. :01,1. The Cinrpai] hai aLu4' iniriared rlE ilBssry liepe l'or prepdtio[ dd srbmssion of fir rsised Furr. ard

I$uc rif E&itica.
.lJ PreriaB lw fierN hlve [err regoqredlmlusiied \iorrrrees-1' to c$fom to illis y¤r'i cl6i6cdion.

for and on behrlf of Sotenn Bhirrt Privnte Linited {}'trmerly kno$n rs
S S Ktlltnri \lchtr & Co. LI.P
Chartered -"\ccorntmts

Prrkjng Liilttrd)

Fim s

Jrlaj Soni
Parlner
lilembership itmbcr 51S799
P!rc*. ),er' leUti
i,'ile Scprember.l. :():j

Arup Kumff Choudhuri
\lrnaging IJirertor
DN , i)3J916n)
Place Klll:am
Dale ScFlesbe( l.:ills

Chi.' I Fi nanc iai ailfi ri:
Place: Kolkata
Date: SeFrenber J. :rJ:s

Lo ^, , ^ltn'\w-"" I
\Ionallsa Chosh
Fxdcutire nricctor
Dfi - irl19l isl
Plgce: Kclkrta
L)atd. Seplenrbcr {. :r il:

Bi";\'\k}-
Ili$ ujit Dn. --'l

\-rt.$,1{1

(lo$ psn! :le..erary'
\icm bersh4r )iunrber .{6'14! i

Flace: Fiolkata
Dala: Scptenber.l. :(-l:-<
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